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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-Q

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2009

OR

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from             to            

Commission File Number 001-14888

INOVIO BIOMEDICAL CORPORATION
(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 33-0969592
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

11494 SORRENTO VALLEY ROAD
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SAN DIEGO, CALIFORNIA 92121-1318

(Address of principal executive offices)(Zip Code)

(858) 597-6006

(Registrant�s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.  Yes x No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that
the registrant was required to submit and post such files).  Yes o No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer,� and �smaller reporting company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check
one):

Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer o

Non-accelerated filer o Smaller reporting company x
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).  Yes o No x

The number of shares outstanding of the registrant�s Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share, was 102,128,323as of November 12, 2009.
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Part I. Financial Information

Item 1. Financial Statements

INOVIO BIOMEDICAL CORPORATION

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

September 30,
2009

December 31,
2008

(Unaudited)
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 32,509,245 $ 14,115,281
Short-term investments 10,420,338 �
Auction rate security rights 3,113,515 �
Accounts receivable 165,792 671,187
Accounts receivable from affiliated entity 1,172,953 �
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 464,923 477,285
Prepaid expenses and other current assets from affiliated entity 406,000 �
Inventory purchases from affiliated entity 177,969 �

Total current assets 48,430,735 15,263,753

Long-term investments � 9,169,471
Auction rate security rights � 4,281,494
Fixed assets, net 381,968 353,807
Intangible assets, net 13,453,379 5,850,540
Goodwill 10,113,371 3,900,713
Investment in affiliated entity 17,771,019 �
Other assets 287,147 167,250

Total assets $ 90,437,619 $ 38,987,028

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 2,641,728 $ 1,367,300
Accounts payable due to affiliated entity 593,668 �
Accrued clinical trial expenses 310,506 399,919
Line of credit 12,111,660 12,109,423
Common stock warrants 4,720,984 224,582
Deferred revenue 865,077 523,544
Deferred rent 2,687 84,814

Total current liabilities 21,246,310 14,709,582
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Deferred revenue, net of current portion 92,385 4,269,151
Deferred rent, net of current portion 74,619 14,898
Deferred tax liabilities 840,000 887,250

Total liabilities 22,253,314 19,880,881

Inovio Biomedical Corporation Stockholders� equity:
Common stock 102,120 44,022
Additional paid-in capital 237,221,749 171,868,914
Accumulated deficit (169,878,565) (152,812,948)
Stockholder note receivable (800) �
Accumulated other comprehensive income 86,921 6,159

Total Inovio Biomedical Corporation stockholders� equity 67,531,425 19,106,147

Non-controlling interest 652,880 �

Total stockholders� equity 68,184,305 19,106,147

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 90,437,619 $ 38,987,028

See accompanying notes.
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INOVIO BIOMEDICAL CORPORATION

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
Revenue:
License fee and milestone payments $ 2,143,239 $ 214,825 $ 4,631,711 $ 611,578
Revenue under collaborative research and
development arrangements 32,885 239,912 120,227 1,159,207
Grant and miscellaneous revenue 1,470,337 � 1,755,562 �

Total revenue 3,646,461 454,737 6,507,500 1,770,785

Operating expenses:
Research and development 3,412,130 1,274,387 5,557,057 4,551,039
General and administrative 3,830,703 1,928,928 11,097,617 7,416,613

Total operating expenses 7,242,833 3,203,315 16,654,674 11,967,652

Loss from operations (3,596,372) (2,748,578) (10,147,174) (10,196,867)

Other income (expense):
Interest (expense)/income, net (26,620) 97,008 (22,903) 587,128
Other (expense)/income, net (2,903,174) 307,162 (3,108,570) 219,850
Gain/(loss) from investment in affiliated entity 3,564,283 � (3,804,397) �

Net loss from operations (2,961,883) (2,344,408) (17,083,044) (9,389,889)

Net loss attributable to non-controlling interest 13,697 � 17,427 �

Net loss attributable to Inovio Biomedical
Corporation $ (2,948,186) $ (2,344,408) $ (17,065,617) $ (9,389,889)

Loss per common share � basic and diluted:

Net loss per share attributable to Inovio
Biomedical Corporation stockholders $ (0.03) $ (0.05) $ (0.26) $ (0.21)

Weighted average number of common
shares outstanding � basic and diluted 93,909,945 43,929,654 65,415,951 43,881,047

See accompanying notes.
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INOVIO BIOMEDICAL CORPORATION

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)

Nine Months
Ended

September 30,
2009

Nine Months
Ended

September 30,
2008

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (17,065,617) $ (9,389,889)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation 165,145 142,000
Amortization of intangible assets 955,311 615,094
Change in value of common stock warrants 3,233,018 (221,238)
Gain on long-term investments (1,250,867) �
Loss on auction rate security rights 1,167,979 �
Stock-based compensation 1,819,967 844,401
Compensation for services paid in common stock � 40,725
Interest converted into common stock 430,715 �
Interest expense accrued on line of credit 123,673 3,036
Amortization of deferred tax liabilities (47,250) (47,250)
Deferred rent (65,052) (46,460)
Loss on disposal of assets 26,404 5,473
Loss from investment in affiliated company 3,804,397 �
Gain on long-term investment in affiliated entity (5,502) �
Accretion of discount on available-for-sale securities � (60,345)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 653,742 413,065
Accounts receivable from affiliated entity (10,175) �
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 170,057 (184,906)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets from affiliated entity (406,000) �
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (1,862,096) (408,413)
Accounts payable due to affiliated entity 576,930 �
Deferred revenue (4,069,374) (298,475)

Net cash used in operating activities (11,654,595) (8,593,182)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of long-term investments � (4,500,000)
Proceeds from long-term investments � 8,000,000
Purchases of capital assets (14,802) (114,144)
Net cash provided by acquisition 1,611,280 �
Additions to intangible assets and other assets (116,567) (366,213)

Net cash provided by investing activities 1,479,911 3,019,643

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs 28,745,361 1,088
Proceeds from line of credit � 1,800,000
Repayment of line of credit (121,436) (39,191)
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Net cash provided by financing activities 28,623,925 1,761,897

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and equivalents (55,277) (27,793)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and equivalents 18,393,964 (3,839,435)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 14,115,281 10,250,929
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 32,509,245 $ 6,411,494

See accompanying notes
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INOVIO BIOMEDICAL CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

1. Description of Business

Inovio Biomedical Corporation (the �Company� or �Inovio�) is engaged in the discovery, development, and delivery of a new generation of
vaccines, called DNA vaccines, focused on cancers and infectious diseases. Our SynCon� technology enables the design of �universal� DNA-based
vaccines capable of providing cross-protection against new, unmatched strains of pathogens such as influenza. The Company�s electroporation
DNA delivery technology uses brief, controlled electrical pulses to increase cellular DNA vaccine uptake. Initial human data has shown this
method can safely and significantly increase gene expression and immune responses. The Company�s clinical programs include human
papillomavirus (�HPV�)/cervical cancer (therapeutic) and human immunodeficiency virus (�HIV�) vaccines. The Company has filed an
Investigational New Drug application (�IND�) with the Food and Drug Administration (�FDA�) for an avian influenza vaccine and is advancing
preclinical research for a universal seasonal/pandemic influenza vaccine. The Company�s partners and collaborators include University of
Pennsylvania, National Microbiology Laboratory of Public Health Agency of Canada, NIAID (NIH), Merck, Tripep, University of
Southampton, and HIV Vaccines Trial Network.

All of the Company�s potential human products are in research and development phases.  No revenues have been generated from the sale of any
such products, nor are any such revenues expected for at least the next several years.  The Company earns revenue from license fees,
collaborative research and development agreements, grants and government contracts.  The Company�s product candidates will require
significant additional research and development efforts, including extensive preclinical and clinical testing.  All product candidates that the
Company advances to clinical testing will require regulatory approval prior to commercial use, and will require significant costs for
commercialization.

2. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of Inovio have been prepared in accordance with United States of
America generally accepted accounting principles (�U.S. GAAP�) for interim financial information and with instructions to Form 10-Q and
Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by U.S. GAAP for complete
financial statements. The condensed consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2009, condensed consolidated statements of operations for
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, and the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows for the nine months
ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, are unaudited, but include all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring adjustments) that the Company
considers necessary for a fair presentation of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented. The results of
operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 shown herein are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be
expected for the year ending December 31, 2009, or for any other period. These financial statements, and notes thereto, should be read in
conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2008, included in the Company�s Form 10-K
filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�) on March 31, 2009.  Further, in connection with preparation of the condensed
consolidated financial statements and in accordance with the recently issued guidance regarding subsequent events, the Company evaluated
subsequent events after the balance sheet date of September 30, 2009 through November 13, 2009, the date of filing the Form 10-Q.
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The Company incurred net loss attributable to Inovio of $2.9 million and $17.1 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009,
respectively.  The Company had working capital of $27.2 million and an accumulated deficit of $169.9 million as of September 30, 2009. The
Company�s ability to continue its operations is dependent upon its ability to obtain additional capital in the future and achieve profitable
operations. On July 31, 2009, Inovio closed a $30.0 million offering of its shares of common stock and warrants to purchase shares of common
stock.  The Company received net proceeds from the transaction of approximately $28.4 million, after deducting offering expenses.  The
Company expects to continue to rely on outside sources of financing to meet its capital needs and the Company may never achieve positive cash
flow. These unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments to the specific amounts and
classifications of assets and liabilities, which might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue in business. The Company�s
unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements as of and for the period ended

6
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September 30, 2009 have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and the settlement of liabilities
and commitments in the normal course of business for the foreseeable future.

3. VGX Pharmaceuticals Business Acquisition

On June 1, 2009 (the �Acquisition Date�) the Company completed the acquisition of VGX Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (�VGX�), a privately-held
company, pursuant to the terms of an Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Merger dated December 5, 2008, as further amended on
March 31, 2009 (the �Merger Agreement�) by and among Inovio, Inovio�s wholly-owned subsidiary Inovio Acquisition, LLC and VGX (the
�Merger�).

Upon the closing of the Merger, based on an exchange ratio of 0.9812 (the �Merger Exchange Ratio�), and on terms and conditions as set forth in
the Merger Agreement,

• all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of VGX were canceled and converted into the right to receive shares of
common stock of Inovio,

• all outstanding options to purchase shares of VGX common stock became exercisable for shares of Inovio�s common stock,

• all outstanding warrants to purchase shares of VGX common stock became exercisable for shares of Inovio�s common stock, and

• all outstanding convertible debt of VGX became debt convertible into Inovio�s common stock on existing terms.

As of the Acquisition Date, an aggregate of 41,492,758 shares of Inovio�s common stock were issued to the former stockholders of VGX, and an
additional 18,794,187 shares of Inovio�s common stock were reserved for issuance upon exercise of the assumed options and warrants and
conversion of the principal of and maximum interest payable on the VGX convertible debt.  Immediately following the Acquisition Date the
continuing holders of Inovio securities owned approximately 51.59% of Inovio�s issued and outstanding common stock and the former holders of
VGX securities owned approximately 48.41% of Inovio�s issued and outstanding common stock.

Inovio and VGX management teams believed that the transaction would provide substantial benefits to the unified company and its stockholders,
including:
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• the potential for greater ability to mitigate overall development risk through creation of a broader, more balanced, fully-integrated
biopharmaceutical company with a deep product development pipeline, which we believe will have significant market potential;

• complementary product pipelines addressing a broad spectrum of indications in large markets;

• a stronger technology platform, including electroporation assisted DNA vaccine delivery, current good manufacturing practices, or
cGMP, experience and capability in production, and the optimized SynCon� sequencing technology with potential to generate new clinical
product candidates on an ongoing basis, which are anticipated to reduce time to market of Inovio and VGX programs;

• a broader patent portfolio;

• the potential for expanded access to third party funding and validation for Inovio and VGX programs;

• an experienced and complete management team; and

• other expected potential synergies, efficiencies and cost savings that may be created in combining the research, development and
technological strengths of Inovio and VGX.

Upon the closing of the Merger, Inovio Acquisition, LLC succeeded to all of VGX�s business, properties and assets and assumed its obligations
(other than the outstanding options and warrants to purchase shares of VGX common stock that became exercisable to purchase shares of Inovio
common stock), changed its name to VGX Pharmaceuticals, LLC, and remains a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, utilizing a single,
integrated management team with Inovio.

Prior to the date of the Merger Agreement, Inovio�s sole relationship with VGX was as a party to a licensing agreement with VGX, entered into
in the ordinary course of business, and as a holder of 25,000 shares of VGX common stock acquired in relation to such agreement. The shares of
VGX common stock held by Inovio were cancelled upon closing of the Merger.

7
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After a review of relevant factors and in accordance with the guidance regarding business combinations, Inovio was determined to be the
accounting acquirer.  The Merger was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting for business combinations under U.S. GAAP.
Accordingly, the historical consolidated financial statements of Inovio will be carried forward at their historical cost and the purchase price is
allocated to VGX�s identifiable assets and liabilities based on their estimated fair values at the Acquisition Date.

The final determination of the purchase price allocation was based on the fair values of major classes of assets acquired, including identifiable
intangibles, and the fair value of liabilities assumed as of the Acquisition Date. The excess purchase price of the acquired entity over the fair
value of assets and liabilities was recognized by the Company as goodwill as an asset on the balance sheet.

As a result of the Merger, Inovio acquired VGX�s developed technology, which consists of VGX�s CELLECTRA® technology and GHRH
technology.

VGX developed two applications in the CELLECTRA® device family. The first covers the intra-muscular (IM) delivery of DNA and the second
covers the intra-dermal/subcutaneous delivery (ID) of DNA. Both devices have been validated, manufactured under cGMP and are ready for use
in human clinical trials. In 2007, VGX filed a device master file (MAF) with the FDA covering the use of the CELLECTRA®-IM EP device in
human clinical trials. The device is intended to be used in combination with a DNA plasmid product. VGX also filed an MAF with the FDA
covering the use of the CELLECTRA®-ID EP device in 2009. It is anticipated that the device will be used in combination with VGX-3100,
VGX-3400 and the family of PENNVAX� vaccines. Inovio is also in early stage licensing discussions with other biotechnology companies for
the use of the device in combination with their proprietary vaccine candidates.

The GHRH technology refers to LifeTide� SW5, which was approved for use in pigs by the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines
Authority (APVMA) on January 5, 2008. On September 10, 2008, VGX Animal Health, Inc., or VGX AH, a majority-owned subsidiary of the
Company, signed a Marketing & Distribution Agreement with Country Vet Wholesaling Pty Ltd, an Australian proprietary company, for the sale
of LifeTide� SW5. In addition, VGX AH has submitted an application for marketing approval in New Zealand, and plans to seek marketing
approvals in several other countries in South East Asia, including the Philippines and Indonesia. VGX AH has also initiated studies to support
regulatory approval of this technology in other major markets, including the U.S. and China.

Management estimated the fair value of the VGX developed technology using reasonable assumptions based on historical experience. The
valuation methodology used to estimate the value of the technologies was the excess earnings method. This method reflects the present value of
the operating cash flows generated by the technologies after taking into account the cost to realize the revenue, and an appropriate discount rate
to reflect the time value and risk associated with the assets. First, yearly revenues for each technology were forecasted for a projected period of
time of 10 years. Related cost of sales and operating expenses were then deducted from the revenue stream. Next, in order to value the
technology, the value and required rate of return for other assets that contribute to the generation of the revenue earned by that particular
technology asset were determined. The required returns on these other assets (the other asset classes identified were: net working capital, fixed
assets, and assembled workforce) were �charged to� (or rather deducted from) the future net operating income to determine the returns specifically
earned by the technology. Then, a discount rate was applied that considered the reasonable expectation of the risk profile of the proprietary
technology in order to bring the future income to a present value. In the case of CELLECTRA® technology, a discount rate of 45% was used for
the core technology and 60% for the milestone and royalty; for the GHRH technology, a 45% discount rate was utilized.

There was no purchase price amount allocated to acquired in-process research and development.
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The percentage of non-controlling ownership interest consists of 12% in VGX Animal Health and 88% ownership by the Company. The
estimated fair value utilized is based on the last round of financing by VGX AH in late 2007, in which that entity issued shares of its common
stock to a third party. There have been no subsequent financing rounds. Inovio has updated the valuation model to reflect current assumptions
and due to the fact that there have been no additional milestone events, such as additional marketing approval, significant licensing agreements,
material adverse events, or large sales contracts that would have materially changed any of the key assumptions used in the last valuation of
VGX AH, Inovio believes that the valuation used in the last round of financing continues to reflect current fair value.
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The Company�s investment in an affiliated entity represents the Company�s ownership interest in VGX International, Inc. (�VGX International�)
and is measured at fair value. The fair market value of the Company�s interest in VGX International was determined using the closing price of
VGX International�s shares of common stock as listed on the Korean Stock Exchange as of June 1, 2009.

The total purchase price of the acquisition is estimated as follows:

Value of Inovio shares issued $ 26,156,188
Value of vested warrants and options assumed 5,137,038

$  31,293,226

The fair value of the Inovio shares used in determining the purchase price was $0.63 per share based on the closing price of Inovio common
stock on June 1, 2009.

The purchase price has been allocated to each major class of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their fair values as of
June 1, 2009. The allocation to identifiable assets and liabilities is summarized below:

Fair Value
Identifiable assets acquired $ 25,012,941
Intangible assets (developed technology) 8,441,583
Goodwill 6,212,658
Assumed liabilities (7,703,649)
Assumed noncontrolling interest (670,307)

Total $ 31,293,226

The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired resulted in goodwill of approximately $6.2 million.

The following unaudited pro forma financial information combines the results of operations of Inovio and VGX assuming the Merger was
consummated on January 1, 2008. The pro forma results are not necessarily indicative of what would have occurred if the Merger had been in
effect for the periods presented. In addition, they are not intended to be a projection of future results and do not reflect any synergies that might
be achieved from combined operations.

Three Month
Period Ended
September 30,

2009

Three Month Period
Ended

September 30,
2008

Nine Month
Period Ended
September 30,

2009

Nine Month
Period Ended
September 30,

2008
Revenue $ 3,646,461 $ 969,476 $ 8,569,451 $ 4,664,339
Net loss attributable to common
stockholders $ (2,948,186) $ (9,000,043) $ (22,489,314) $ (19,443,485)
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Net loss per common share $ (.03) $ (0.11) $ (0.25) $ (0.23)

4.           Principles of Consolidation

These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Inovio Biomedical Corporation, incorporated in the state of
Delaware, and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Genetronics, Inc., a company incorporated in the state of California; VGX Pharmaceuticals, LLC,
a company incorporated in the state of Delaware, Inovio AS and Inovio Tec AS, companies incorporated in Norway; and Inovio Asia Pte. Ltd.
(�IAPL�), a company incorporated in the Republic of Singapore. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated upon
consolidation.

Reorganization

In April 2009, the Company�s Board of Directors implemented a reduction in force which impacted our Norwegian operations.  In connection
with this decision, the Company is in the process of dissolving Inovio AS and Inovio Tec AS, companies incorporated in Norway.  Accordingly,
operations for Inovio AS ceased on July 31, 2009.  As of September 30, 2009, all significant expenses related to this reorganization have been
incurred.

9
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5. Marketable Securities and Fair Value Measurements

The guidance regarding fair value measurements establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair
value. These tiers include: Level 1, defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets; Level 2, defined as inputs other than
quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable; and Level 3, defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no
market data exists, therefore requiring an entity to develop its own assumptions.

The Company�s financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at September 30, 2009 are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements at
September 30, 2009

Total

Using Quoted Prices
in Active Markets

for Identical Assets
(Level 1)

Using Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Auction rate securities $ 10,420,338 $ � $  10,420,338
Auction rate securities
rights 3,113,515 � 3,113,515
Investment in affiliated
entity 17,771,019 17,771,019 �
Total Assets $ 31,304,872 $ 17,771,019 $  13,533,853

Level 1 assets include the Company�s investment in VGX International, Inc., for which the fair value is based on the market value of 8,075,775
common shares on September 30, 2009 listed on the Korean Stock Exchange.

The Company has determined that no items meet the criteria for definition within the Level 2 hierarchy. Level 3 assets held as of September 30,
2009 include municipal debt obligations known as auction rate securities (�ARS�).  Due to conditions in the global credit markets, these securities,
representing a par value of $13.6 million, are currently not liquid.

In December 2008, the Company, via its wholly-owned subsidiary Genetronics, Inc. (�Genetronics�), which holds the ARS, accepted an offer of
ARS Rights from UBS. The ARS Rights permit the Company to require UBS to purchase the Company�s ARS at par value at any time during the
period of June 30, 2010 through July 2, 2012. If the Company does not exercise its ARS Rights, the ARS will continue to accrue interest as
determined by the terms of the ARS. If the ARS Rights are not exercised before July 2, 2012 they will expire and UBS will have no further
obligation to buy the Company�s ARS. UBS has the discretion to purchase or sell the Company�s ARS at any time without prior notice so long as
the Company receives a payment at par upon any sale or disposition. UBS will only exercise its discretion to purchase or sell the Company�s
ARS for the purpose of restructurings, dispositions or other solutions that will provide the Company with par value for its ARS. As a condition
to accepting the offer of ARS Rights, the Company released UBS from all claims except claims for consequential damages relating to its
marketing and sales of ARS. The Company also agreed not to serve as a class representative or receive benefits under any class action settlement
or investor fund.
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While the Company continues to earn interest on its ARS at the maximum contractual rates, these investments are not currently trading and
therefore do not currently have a readily determinable market value. Accordingly, the estimated fair value of the ARS no longer approximates
par value. The Company has used a discounted cash flow model to determine the estimated fair value of its investment in ARS and its ARS
Rights as of September 30, 2009. The assumptions used in preparing the discounted cash flow model include estimates for interest rates, timing
and amount of cash flows and expected holding period of the ARS and ARS Rights.

At June 30, 2009, these ARS investment securities and the ARS and Put option were reclassified from long-term assets to current assets due to
the time frame in which they can be readily convertible to cash.

The Company elected to measure the ARS Rights at fair value to mitigate volatility in reported earnings due to their linkage to the ARS.  The
ARS Rights will continue to be measured at fair value utilizing Level 3 inputs until the earlier of their maturity or exercise.

The following table presents a summary of changes in fair value of the Company�s assets measured on a recurring basis using Level 3 inputs for
the nine months ended September 30, 2009:

Nine Months Ending
September 30, 2009

Balance at January 1, 2009 $ 13,450,965
Change in value of auction rate security 1,250,867
Change in value of auction rate security rights (1,167,979)

Balance at September 30, 2009 $ 13,533,853

Total gain included in Other income/(expense) in the condensed consolidated
statement of operations relating to assets held at September 30, 2009 $ 82,888
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6.           Line of Credit

On August 26, 2008, the Company received notice from UBS Bank USA (�UBS�) that the Company�s application had been approved for a
$5.0 million uncommitted demand revolving line of credit (�Line of Credit�) secured by ARS held by the Company in an account with UBS
Financial Services, Inc. (the �Collateral Account�), to provide additional working capital. On December 19, 2008, the Company amended its
existing loan agreement with UBS Bank USA, increasing the existing credit line up to $12.1 million, with the ARS pledged as collateral. The
Company fully drew down on the line of credit on December 23, 2008. Advances under the Line of Credit bear interest at LIBOR plus 1.00%
(the �Spread Over LIBOR�). UBS may change the Spread Over LIBOR at its discretion when the Collateral consisting of ARS may be sold,
exchanged or otherwise conveyed by the Company for gross proceeds that are, in the aggregate, not less than the par value of such securities.
The loan is treated as a �no net cost loan�, as it bears interest at a rate equal to the average rate of interest paid to the Company on the pledged
ARS, and the net interest cost to the Company is zero.

7.           Goodwill and Intangible Assets

In accordance with the guidance regarding goodwill and other intangible assets, the Company�s goodwill is not amortized, but is subject to an
annual impairment test which is performed by the Company as of November each year or sooner if indicators of impairment exist. The following
sets forth the intangible assets by major asset class:

Useful Life
Years Cost

Accumulated
amortization

Net book
value

As of September 30, 2009
Non-amortizing:
Goodwill(a) � $ 10,113,371 $ � $ 10,113,371

Amortizing:
Patents 8-17 $ 5,802,528 $ (3,614,408) $ 2,188,120
Licenses 8-17 1,198,781 (961,360) 237,421
CELLECTRA® (c) 5-11 8,106,270 (403,185) 7,703,085
GHRH (c) 11 335,314 (10,561) 324,753
Other(b) 18 4,050,000 (1,050,000) 3,000,000
Total Intangible Assets 19,492,893 (6,039,514) 13,453,379

$ 29,606,264 $ (6,039,514) $ 23,566,750
As of December 31, 2008
Non-amortizing:
Goodwill(a) � $ 3,900,713 $ � $ 3,900,713

Amortizing:
Patents 8-17 $ 5,685,961 $ (3,255,231) $ 2,430,730
Licenses 8-17 1,198,781 (947,721) 251,060
Other(b) 18 4,050,000 (881,250) 3,168,750
Total Intangible Assets 10,934,742 (5,084,202) 5,850,540

$ 14,835,455 $ (5,084,202) $ 9,751,253

(a) Goodwill was recorded from the Inovio AS acquisition in January 2005 and from the acquisition of VGX in June 2009 for $3.9 million and
$6.2 million, respectively.
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(b) Other intangible assets represent the fair value of acquired contracts and intellectual property from the Inovio AS acquisition.

(c) CELLECTRA® and GHRH are developed technologies which were recorded from the acquisition of VGX.

11

Edgar Filing: INOVIO BIOMEDICAL CORP - Form 10-Q

22



Table of Contents

Aggregate amortization expense on intangible assets for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 was $489,000 and $955,000,
respectively, and for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 was $200,000 and $615,000, respectively.  The estimated aggregate
amortization expense for each of the five succeeding fiscal years is $484,000 for the remainder of fiscal year 2009, $1.9 million for 2010, $1.9
million for 2011, $1.8 million for 2012, and $1.8 million for 2013.

8.           Stockholders� Equity

The following is a summary of the Company�s authorized and issued common and preferred stock as of September 30, 2009 and December 31,
2008:

Outstanding as of

Authorized Issued
September 30,

2009
December 31,

2008

Common Stock, par $0.001 300,000,000 102,119,751 102,119,751 44,023,050
Series A Preferred Stock, par $0.001 1,000 817 � �
Series B Preferred Stock, par $0.001 1,000 750 � �
Series C Preferred Stock, par $0.001 1,091 1,091 26 71
Series D Preferred Stock, par $0.001 1,966,292 1,966,292 � �

Preferred Stock

The following is a summary of changes in the number of outstanding shares of the Company�s preferred stock for the three months ended
September 30, 2009 and 2008:

Series C Series D

Shares Outstanding as of July 1, 2009 71 �
Preferred Shares converted (45) �
Shares Outstanding as of September 30, 2009 26 �

Shares Outstanding as of July 1, 2008 71 113,311
Preferred Shares converted � (113,311)
Shares Outstanding as of September 30, 2008 71 �

The following is a summary of changes in the number of outstanding shares of the Company�s preferred stock for the nine months ended
September 30, 2009 and 2008:

Series C Series D
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Shares Outstanding as of January 1, 2009 71 �
Preferred Shares converted (45) �
Shares Outstanding as of September 30, 2009 26 �

Shares Outstanding as of January 1, 2008 71 113,311
Preferred Shares converted � (113,311)
Shares Outstanding as of September 30, 2008 71 �

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009, 45 shares of the Company�s Series C preferred stock were converted into 66,176
shares of the Company�s common stock.

Convertible Subordinated Promissory Notes

On June 1, 2009, the Company consummated the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement.  VGX Pharmaceuticals, Inc. had an
aggregate of $4,400,000 in principal amount of convertible subordinated promissory notes, and an aggregate of $468,000 in accrued and unpaid
interest on such notes, as of June 30, 2009.  Pursuant to the Merger Agreement the notes were convertible at the selling stockholders� option into
our common stock; the notes also automatically converted into the Company�s common stock in the event that the Company�s common stock
traded at or above $2.10 per
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share for five consecutive trading days. The conversion price of the notes was $1.05 per share. As of August 4, 2009, the Company�s common
stock had traded at or above $2.10 per share for five consecutive trading days, and the notes were automatically converted into 4,600,681 shares
of Inovio�s common stock. Such shares are subject to a lock-up agreement which provides that such shares may not be sold for a period of 180
days following the date the Merger closed, provided that such restriction lapsed with respect to 50% of such shares on that date that is 90 days
from the date the Merger closed.

Common Stock

In July 2009, the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement with certain institutional investors relating to the sale and issuance of
(a) 11,111,110 shares of common stock and (b) warrants to purchase a total of 2,777,776 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $3.50
per share, for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $30 million.  The warrants will be exercisable beginning six months after issuance
and will expire six months from the date they are first exercisable. The shares of common stock and warrants were sold in units, consisting of
one share of common stock and a warrant to purchase 0.25 of a share of common stock, at a purchase price of $2.70 per unit.  The Company
received net proceeds from the transaction of approximately $28.4 million, after deducting offering expenses. As of September 30, 2009, none
of these warrants have been exercised.

Upon the closing of the Merger in June 2009, an aggregate of 41,492,758 shares of the Company�scommon stock were issued to the former
stockholders of VGX, and an additional 18,794,187 shares of the Company�s common stock were reserved for issuance upon exercise of the
assumed options and warrants and conversion of the principal of and maximum interest payable on the VGX convertible debt. In August 2009
the VGX convertible debt was automatically converted into 4,600,681 shares of the Company�s common stock.

In August 2007, the Company entered into an agreement with an outside consulting advisor pursuant to which the Company issued 230,000
registered shares of common stock and registered warrants to purchase 150,000 shares of common stock, as payment of a non-refundable
retainer in connection with the engagement of its services. The warrants issued have an exercise price of $3.00 per share, and are exercisable
through August 6, 2012. As of September 30, 2009, none of these warrants have been exercised.

In May 2007, the Company completed a registered equity financing, whereby it sold 4,595,094 shares of common stock resulting in gross
aggregate cash proceeds of $16.2 million.

In March 2007, the Company entered into an agreement in which it agreed to issue a total of 90,000 restricted shares of common stock in equal
quarterly installments in exchange for consulting services. As of September 30, 2009, the Company had issued all 90,000 restricted common
shares.

In March 2007, the Company terminated its exclusive royalty-free license to IAPL allowing the Company�s subsidiary to use certain of the
Company�s intellectual property, which had been issued in October 2006 prior to the ordinary share financing described below, in exchange for
6,584,365 ordinary shares of IAPL. Upon termination the Company retained the IAPL ordinary shares received in the license transaction.
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In January 2007, the Company exchanged for 2,201,644 restricted shares of common stock and warrants to purchase up to 770,573 restricted
shares of common stock for 2,201,644 ordinary shares of its Singapore subsidiary Inovio Asia Pte. Ltd. (IAPL), pursuant to the terms of the
Securities Purchase and Exchange Agreement under which the ordinary shares were originally issued by IAPL in October 2006 for $5.3 million.
The warrants issued have an exercise price of $2.87 per share and are exercisable through October 13, 2011. As of September 30, 2009, none of
these warrants have been exercised.

In October 2006, the Company completed a registered offering with foreign investors, whereby it sold 4,074,067 shares of common stock and
issued warrants to purchase 1,425,919 shares of common stock which resulted in gross aggregate cash proceeds of $9.9 million. As part of this
offering, the Company informed holders of our then outstanding Series C Preferred Stock who held participation rights of their ability to
participate in the offering based upon the pricing of the transaction and the applicable liquidation preference for their series of preferred shares.
Some of these stockholders had previously converted a portion of their shares of preferred stock pursuant to their optional conversion rights, and
most of these stockholders wholly converted their remaining shares of the Company�s preferred stock through exercise of their participation
rights in this offering. By electing to participate in this offering, these stockholders converted 115.12 shares of previously issued Series C
Preferred Stock and $14,571 of accrued dividends into 479,722 restricted shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 167,902 restricted
shares of common stock. These participating stockholders received 304,450 additional restricted shares of the Company�s common stock as
compared to the number of shares of the Company�s common stock into which their existing Series C Preferred Stock could have been converted
under the original terms of the Series C
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Preferred Stock. As a result, the Company recorded an imputed dividend charge of $1.9 million related to the participating stockholders who
converted $1.2 million of their previous Series C Preferred Stock investment. The Company calculated this imputed dividend charge, where the
incremental number of shares of common stock which was received by participating Series C Preferred Stockholders was multiplied by the price
of the Company�s common stock on the commitment date of the original Series C Preferred Stock issuance, or $6.08 per share, to calculate the
imputed dividend charge associated with this beneficial conversion. All warrants issued in connection with the 2006 registered offering have an
exercise price of $2.87 per share and are exercisable through October 13, 2011. As of September 30, 2009, none of these warrants have been
exercised.

The Company accounts for registered common stock warrants issued in October 2006, August 2007 and July 2009 under the authoritative
guidance on accounting for derivative financial instruments indexed to, and potentially settled in, a company�s own stock, on the understanding
that in compliance with applicable securities laws, the registered warrants require the issuance of registered securities upon exercise and do not
sufficiently preclude an implied right to net cash settlement. The Company classifies registered warrants on the consolidated balance sheet as a
current liability which is revalued at each balance sheet date subsequent to the initial issuance. Determining the appropriate fair-value model and
calculating the fair value of registered warrants requires considerable judgment, including estimating stock price volatility and expected warrant
life. The Company develops its estimates based on historical data. A small change in the estimates used may have a relatively large change in the
estimated valuation. The Company uses the Black-Scholes pricing model to value the registered warrants. Changes in the fair market value of
the warrants are reflected in the consolidated statement of operations as �Other income/(expense), net.�

Warrants

In addition to warrants granted as discussed above, the Company has issued the following additional warrants:

On June 1, 2009, pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement the Company assumed all of the outstanding warrants to purchase shares of
VGX common stock.  Such warrants are exercisable to purchase 4,923,406 shares of common stock at a weighted average exercise price of
$1.10. As of September 30, 2009, none of these warrants have been exercised.

Participants in the Company�s December 2005 private placement were issued five-year warrants to purchase an aggregate of 3,462,451 shares of
the Company�s common stock with an exercise price of $2.93 per share, exercisable through December 30, 2010. As of September 30, 2009,
none of these warrants have been exercised.

In connection with the leasing of its corporate headquarters, the Company issued a warrant to purchase 50,000 shares of common stock at $5.00
per share to the landlord of this leased facility in December 2004. This warrant is immediately exercisable and expires on December 6, 2009,
five years from the date of issuance. This warrant was valued on the date of issuance using the Black-Scholes pricing model. The fair value of
this warrant, $121,000, will be recognized ratably over the five-year term of the lease as rent expense. As of September 30, 2009, none of these
warrants have been exercised.

On September 15, 2000, the Company entered into an exclusive license agreement with the University of South Florida Research
Foundation, Inc. (USF), whereby USF granted the Company an exclusive, worldwide license to USF�s rights in patents and patent applications
generally related to needle electrodes (�License Agreement�). Pursuant to the License Agreement, the Company granted USF and its designees
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warrants to acquire 150,000 common shares for $9.00 per share until September 14, 2010. Of the total warrants granted, 75,000 vested at the
date of grant and the remainder will vest upon the achievement of certain milestones. The 75,000 non-forfeitable vested warrants were valued at
$554,000 using the Black-Scholes pricing model and were recorded as other assets with a credit to additional paid-in capital. The remaining
75,000 warrants are forfeitable and will be valued at the fair value on the date of vesting using the Black-Scholes pricing model. As of
September 30, 2009, no warrants issued in connection with this licensing agreement had been exercised.

In July 2008, warrants to purchase 2,001,552 shares of the Company�s common stock, issued in connection with the Company�s Series A and B
Preferred Stock offerings, expired.

In May 2009, warrants to purchase 713,603 shares of the Company�s common stock, issued in connection with Company�s Series C Preferred
Stock offering, expired.

Stock Options

The Company has one active stock and cash-based incentive plan, the Amended and Restated 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the �Incentive Plan�),
pursuant to which the Company has granted stock options and restricted stock awards to executive officers, directors and employees. The plan
was adopted on March 31, 2007, approved by the stockholders on
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May 4, 2007, approved by the stockholders as amended on May 2, 2008, and approved by the stockholders as amended and restated on
August 25, 2009. The Incentive Plan reserves 3,750,000 shares of common stock for issuance as or upon exercise of incentive awards granted
and to be granted at future dates. At September 30, 2009, the Company had 592,876 shares of common stock available for future grant under the
plan, and 240,000 shares of vested restricted stock and options to purchase 2,772,999 shares of common stock outstanding under the plan. The
awards granted and available for future grant under the Incentive Plan generally have a term of ten years and generally vest over a period of
three years. The Incentive Plan terminates by its terms on March 31, 2017.

The Incentive Plan supersedes all of the Company�s previous stock option plans, which include the 1997 Stock Option Plan, under which the
Company had options to purchase 3,750 shares of common stock outstanding and the Amended 2000 Stock Option Plan, under which the
Company had options to purchase 2,396,870 shares of common stock outstanding at September 30, 2009. The terms and conditions of the
options outstanding under these plans remain unchanged.

9.           Net loss per share

Basic loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss for the year by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
year. Diluted loss per share is calculated in accordance with the treasury stock method and reflects the potential dilution that would occur if
securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted to common stock. Since the effect of the assumed exercise of
common stock options and other convertible securities was anti-dilutive for all periods presented in 2009 and 2008, there is no difference
between basic and diluted loss per share.

10.         Stock-Based Compensation

The Company estimates the fair value of stock options granted using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The Black-Scholes option pricing
model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options, which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In
addition, option valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected stock price volatility and expected
option life. The Company amortizes the fair value of the awards on a straight-line basis. All option grants are amortized over the requisite
service period of the awards. Expected volatility is based on historical volatility. The expected life of options granted is based on historical
expected life. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield in effect at the time of grant. The forfeiture rate is based on historical
data and the Company records stock-based compensation expense only for those awards that are expected to vest. The dividend yield is based on
the fact that no dividends have been paid historically and none are currently expected to be paid.

The assumptions used to estimate the fair value of stock options granted for the three and nine month period ended September 30, 2009 and
2008 are presented below:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine months Ended September 30,
2009 2008 2009 2008

Risk-free interest rate 1.88% 2.91% 1.37%-2.64% 2.65%-3.18%
Expected volatility 132% 69% 68%-132% 69%
Expected life in years 4 4 4-5 4
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Dividend yield � � � �
Forfeiture rate 14% 16% 14-18% 16%

Total compensation cost for the Company�s stock plans that has been recognized in the condensed consolidated statement of operations for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 was $749,000 and $1.6 million, respectively, of which $389,000 and $541,000 was included in
research and development expenses and $360,000 and $1.1 million was included in general and administrative expenses, respectively.

Total compensation cost for the Company�s stock plans that has been recognized in the condensed consolidated statement of operations for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 was $270,000 and $797,000, respectively, of which $76,000 and $222,000 was included in
research and development expenses and $194,000 and $575,000 was included in general and administrative expenses, respectively.

As of September 30, 2009, there was $1.4 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock-based compensation
arrangements for Inovio stock options, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of three years, as well as $770,000 of
total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock-based compensation arrangements from VGX stock options assumed in the
Merger, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.6 years. All compensation expense related to Inovio stock
options granted prior to the Merger was fully vested upon the Merger.
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As of September 30, 2008, there was $978,000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock-based compensation
arrangements for Inovio stock options, which was expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of one year.

The weighted average grant date fair value per share was $1.27 and $1.25 for employee stock options granted during the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2009, respectively, excluding VGX stock options assumed pursuant to the merger, and $1.06 and $0.98 for employee stock
options granted during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, respectively.

There was no restricted stock granted during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009.  The weighted average grant date fair value
per share was $0.87 for non-vested restricted stock granted during the nine months ended September 30, 2008.  There was no restricted stock
granted during the three months ended September 30, 2008.

At September 30, 2009, there was no unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested restricted stock as all restricted stock became vested
upon the Merger.  At September 30, 2008, there was $216,000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested restricted stock,
which was expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.3 years.

The fair value of options granted to non-employees at the measurement dates were estimated using the Black-Scholes pricing model. Total
stock-based compensation for options granted to non-employees for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 was $185,000 and
$221,000, respectively.  Total stock-based compensation for options granted to non-employees for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2008 was $8,000 and $47,000, respectively.

VGX AH, a majority owned subsidiary of VGX, has adopted a 2007 equity incentive plan for the issuance of options to employees and
consultants.  There were no options granted during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009, and 409,500 options were granted
during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008.

11. Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 and September 30, 2008 includes net loss, foreign currency
translation adjustments and unrealized losses on investments.  A summary of the Company�s comprehensive loss is as follows:

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine months Ended
September 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
Comprehensive loss:

Net loss $ (2,948,186) $ (2,344,408) $ (17,065,617) $ (9,389,889)
Unrealized losses on
long-term investments � (430,125) � (1,502,170)
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Foreign currency translation
adjustments 41,990 (76,518) 80,762 (26,985)
Comprehensive loss $ (2,906,196) $ (2,851,051) $ (16,984,855) $ (10,919,044)

12. Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information

Nine months Ended
September 30,

2009 2008
Supplemental schedule of financing activities:

Interest paid $ 123,673 $ 3,036

Supplemental schedule of non-cash activity:

Issuance of common stock and stock options and warrants assumed in
connection with acquisition of VGX Pharmaceuticals, Inc. $ 31,293,226 $ �
Leasehold improvements financed by landlord $ � $ 35,211
Conversions of preferred stock to common stock $ 66 $ 113
Conversion of long-term debt and accrued interest to common stock $ 4,830,715 $ �
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13. Related-Party Transactions

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009, VGX reflected expenses of $36,000 and $38,000, respectively, in the condensed
consolidated statements of operations for stock options and awards granted to related parties.

Research and development expenses for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009, includes $792,000 and $817,000, respectively, for
materials and supplies purchased from a related party that VGX intends to use in conjunction with preclinical studies.

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009, VGX incurred operating expenses in conjunction with related party activities of
$115,000 and $148,000, respectively, of which $54,000 and $72,000, respectively, represents lease payments on the facility in The Woodlands,
TX reimbursed to VGX by the related party; $30,000 and $40,000, respectively, of compensation expenses for technical support for process
development and manufacturing activities, of which $29,000 and $39,000, respectively, is reimbursed to VGX; and $31,000 and $36,000,
respectively, for other services provided to VGX by related parties.

Item 2. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This report contains forward-looking statements. These statements relate to future events or our future financial performance. In some cases,
you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as �may,� �will,� �should,� �expect,� �plan,� �anticipate,� �believe,�
�estimate,� �predict,� �potential� or �continue,� the negative of such terms or other comparable terminology. These statements are only
predictions. Actual events or results may differ materially.

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, levels
of activity, performance or achievements. Moreover, neither we, nor any other person, assume responsibility for the accuracy and completeness
of the forward-looking statements. We are under no obligation to update any of the forward-looking statements after the filing of this Quarterly
Report to conform such statements to actual results or to changes in our expectations.

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial
statements and the related notes and other financial information appearing elsewhere in this Quarterly Report. Readers are also urged to
carefully review and consider the various disclosures made by us which attempt to advise interested parties of the factors which affect our
business, including without limitation the disclosures made in Item 1A of Part II of this Quarterly Report under the Caption �Risk Factors� and
under the captions �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,� and �Risk Factors� and in
our audited consolidated financial statements and related notes included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2008.

Risk factors that could cause actual results to differ from those contained in the forward-looking statements include but are not limited to: our
history of losses; our lack of products that have received regulatory approval; uncertainties inherent in clinical trials and product development
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programs, including but not limited to the fact that pre-clinical and clinical results may not be indicative of results achievable in other trials or
for other indications, that results from one study may not necessarily be reflected or supported by the results of other similar studies, that results
from an animal study may not be indicative of results achievable in human studies, that clinical testing is expensive and can take many years to
complete, that the outcome of any clinical trial is uncertain and failure can occur at any time during the clinical trial process, and that our
electroporation technology and DNA vaccines may fail to show the desired safety and efficacy traits in clinical trials; the availability of funding;
the ability to manufacture vaccine candidates; the availability or potential availability of alternative therapies or treatments for the conditions
targeted by us or our collaborators, including alternatives that may be more efficacious or cost-effective than any therapy or treatment that we
and our collaborators hope to develop; whether our proprietary rights are enforceable or defensible or infringe or allegedly infringe on rights
of others or can withstand claims of invalidity; and the impact of government healthcare proposals.
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General

Inovio Biomedical Corporation (the �Company� or �Inovio�) is engaged in the discovery, development, and delivery of a new generation of
vaccines, called DNA vaccines, focused on cancers and infectious diseases. Our SynCon� technology enables the design of �universal� DNA-based
vaccines capable of providing cross-protection against new, unmatched strains of pathogens such as influenza. Our electroporation DNA
delivery technology uses brief, controlled electrical pulses to increase cellular DNA vaccine uptake. Initial human data has shown this method
can safely and significantly increase gene expression and immune responses. Our clinical programs include human papillomavirus
(�HPV�)/cervical cancer (therapeutic) and human immunodeficiency virus (�HIV�) vaccines. We have filed an Investigational New Drug application
(�IND�) with the Food and Drug Administration (�FDA�) for an avian influenza vaccine and are advancing preclinical research for a universal
seasonal/pandemic influenza vaccine. Our partners and collaborators include University of Pennsylvania, National Microbiology Laboratory of
the Public Health Agency of Canada, NIAID (NIH), Merck, Tripep, University of Southampton, and HIV Vaccines Trial Network.

On June 1, 2009, we completed our acquisition of VGX Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (�VGX�) whereby VGX became a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Inovio (the �Merger�).  We believe the Merger advances our ability to play a leadership role in the discovery, development, and delivery of DNA
vaccines.

We believe that better vaccine design and delivery are two critical requirements to achieving breakthroughs for this new generation of vaccines.
Inovio today has world-class DNA vaccine expertise and technology, with leading competencies in both design and delivery. With compelling
preclinical data and encouraging proof-of-principle data from human studies already in hand, we are optimistic about Inovio�s potential to
achieve additional clinical results that will highlight the Company�s leadership in DNA vaccine development.

Inovio�s DNA vaccine programs include:

• Phase I clinical study, VGX-3100 HPV/cervical cancer vaccine (Inovio)

• Phase I clinical study, PENNVAX-BTM preventive HIV vaccine without electroporation (Inovio, with HIV Vaccines Trial Network)

• Phase I clinical study, PENNVAX-BTM therapeutic HIV vaccine without electroporation (Inovio, with University of Pennsylvania)

• Phase I clinical study, hTERT vaccine against breast, lung, prostate cancers (Merck; licensed Inovio�s electroporation delivery
technology)
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• Phase I proof-of-concept study, prostate cancer vaccine (University of  Southampton, using Inovio�s electroporation delivery
technology)

• Phase I proof-of-concept study, hepatitis C virus vaccine (Tripep, using Inovio�s electroporation delivery technology)

• IND, awaiting approval: VGX-3400 avian flu vaccine with cross-strain capability (Inovio)

• Pre-Clinical: H1N1 influenza DNA vaccines (Inovio)

• Pre-IND: PENNVAX-B� preventive HIV vaccine using electroporation (Inovio, with HIV Vaccines Trial Network)

• Pre-clinical: PENNVAX-GP� preventive HIV vaccine (Inovio; funded by $23.5 million contract from NIH National Institute of
Allergy and Infectious Diseases)

• Pre-clinical: universal influenza vaccine with sufficiently broad cross-strain capability to encompass both seasonal and
pandemic-potential influenza strains across H1, H2, H3 and H5 sub-types (Inovio)

Other assets of the company include:

• VGX-1027, an anti-inflammatory small molecule drug candidate, which successfully completed a Phase I clinical study and is being
prepared for a phase II study.
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• 25% stake in VGX International, a publicly-traded company (Korean Stock Exchange: 011000) with a DNA vaccine manufacturing
subsidiary operating in Texas.

• VGX Animal Health, Inc., a majority-owned subsidiary that markets the LifeTideTM animal growth hormone for swine. LifeTide� is
one of only four DNA-based treatments approved for use in animals and is the only DNA-based agent delivered using electroporation that has
been granted marketing approval (Australia).

Recent Developments

On July 13, 2009, we received written notice from Wyeth Pharmaceuticals (�Wyeth�) of the termination without cause of the Collaboration and
License Agreement, dated as of November 2, 2006 (the �Agreement�).  The termination is effective ninety (90) days from our receipt of the
written notice of termination.  Under the Agreement, we had granted Wyeth a worldwide non-exclusive license to use our electroporation
technology for delivery of therapeutic DNA vaccines against certain targets.

Revenue under the Agreement had been a material portion of our revenue from collaborative research and development arrangements in past
periods.  We believe that termination of the Agreement enables us to further develop its clinical programs on an exclusive basis.

Influenza A (H1N1) virus is a subtype of influenza virus A and the most common cause of influenza (flu) in humans.  In June 2009, World
Health Organization declared that flu due to a new strain of swine-origin H1N1 was responsible for the 2009 flu pandemic.  On July 29, 2009,
we announced that Inovio�s SynCon� H1N1 influenza DNA vaccines achieved protection or indications of protection against certain current
circulating pandemic swine origin influenza A/H1N1 viruses in animal studies.

In one series of studies, we developed SynCon� H1N1 influenza DNA vaccines based on certain common or consensus protein sequences among
various H1 strains. These are based on subtypes of the viral surface protein hemagglutinin (HA),  N1 subtypes of the viral surface protein
neuraminidase (NA) and the surface exposed portion of the transmembrane protein M2 (m2E).  We conducted vaccination studies in a pig model
using HA, NA, and m2E-based DNA vaccines.  The humoral or antibody immune response to these DNA vaccines is assessed by the
hemagglutination inhibition (HI) assays.  The HI assays are based on the fact that influenza viruses bind to and cause hemagglutination of red
blood cells, and the antibodies generated against viral hemagglutinin inhibits the hemagglutination.  A hemagglutination-inhibiting (HI) antibody
titer of 1:40 is considered protective against influenza infection.  In an earlier pig model study, we showed that the SynCon� based H1N1
vaccines (the HA, NA , and m2E-based DNA vaccines) achieved hemagglutination inhibition (HI) titers above the protection threshold in 100%
of the vaccinated animals against an existing swine influenza virus (A/Iowa/35233/1999).  In a continuation of this study, our investigators
tested the immune sera for responses against a virus isolated from the current circulating strain of swine origin influenza A/H1N1 (Swine
A/Mexico/InDRE4487/2009).  All the pigs immunized with the SynCon� H1N1 vaccine developed HI titers exceeding the 1:40 titer commonly
associated with humoral protective immunity in humans.

In another series of studies, we developed influenza DNA vaccines based on NP and m2E proteins which are less variable amongst the different
influenza virus strains.  We conducted vaccination studies in a mouse model using the NP and m2E based DNA vaccines, and assessed the
cell-mediated immune response to the vaccination. Inovio investigators immunized the mice with our NP and m2E based DNA vaccines and
challenged these animals with a second related strain isolated from the current circulating influenza A/H1N1 (A/Canada/AB/RV1532/2009). 
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While all mice showed effects of virus challenge as judged by significant weight loss, the vaccinated mice recovered from virus
infection-induced morbidity significantly faster compared to the non-immunized control mice.

In an earlier mouse model study (third study), we showed that mice immunized with our SynCon� H1N1 DNA vaccine containing HA and NP
components  provided 100% protection in a lethal challenge study against an unmatched H1N1 virus that caused the 1918 Spanish flu, which
killed over 40 million people worldwide.

On July 29, 2009, we entered into a securities purchase agreement with certain institutional investors relating to the sale and issuance of
(a) 11,111,110 shares of common stock and (b) warrants to purchase a total of 2,777,776 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $3.50
per share, for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $30 million.  The warrants will be exercisable beginning six months after issuance
and will expire six months from the date they are first exercisable. The shares of common stock and warrants were sold in units, consisting of
one share of common stock and a
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warrant to purchase 0.25 of a share of common stock, at a purchase price of $2.70 per unit.  The offering closed on July 31, 2009.  We received
proceeds from the transaction of approximately $28.4 million, after deducting offering expenses.

As of September 30, 2009, we had an accumulated deficit of $169.9 million. We expect to continue to incur substantial operating losses in the
future due to our commitment to our research and development programs, the funding of preclinical studies, clinical trials and regulatory
activities and the costs of general and administrative activities.

Critical Accounting Policies

The SEC defines critical accounting policies as those that are, in management�s view, important to the portrayal of our financial condition and
results of operations and require management�s judgment. Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is
based on our unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (�U.S. GAAP�). The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. We base our estimates on experience and on various assumptions that we
believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from those estimates. Our critical accounting policies
include:

Revenue Recognition.  License fees are comprised of initial fees and milestone payments derived from collaborative licensing arrangements. We
continue to recognize non-refundable milestone payments upon the achievement of specified milestones upon which we have earned the
milestone payment, provided the milestone payment is substantive in nature and the achievement of the milestone was not reasonably assured at
the inception of the agreement. We defer payments for milestone events which are reasonably assured and recognize them ratably over the
minimum remaining period of our performance obligations. Payments for milestones which are not reasonably assured are treated as the
culmination of a separate earnings process and are recognized as revenue when the milestones are achieved.

We have adopted a strategy of co-developing or licensing our gene delivery technology for specific genes or specific medical indications.
Accordingly, we have entered into collaborative research and development agreements and have received funding for pre-clinical research and
clinical trials. Payments under these agreements, which are non-refundable, are recorded as revenue as the related research expenditures are
incurred pursuant to the terms of the agreements and provided collectability is reasonably assured.

We receive non-refundable grants under available government programs. Government grants towards current expenditures are recorded as
revenue when there is reasonable assurance that we have complied with all conditions necessary to receive the grants, collectability is reasonably
assured, and as the expenditures are incurred.

Research and development expenses.  Since our inception, virtually all of our activities have consisted of research and development efforts
related to developing our electroporation technologies and DNA vaccines. Research and development expenses consist of expenses incurred in
performing research and development activities including salaries and benefits, facilities and other overhead expenses, clinical trials, contract
services and other outside expenses. Research and development expenses are charged to operations as they are incurred.
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Valuation of Goodwill and Intangible Assets.  Our business acquisitions typically result in goodwill and other intangible assets, and the recorded
values of those assets may become impaired in the future. Acquired intangible assets are still being developed for the future economic viability
contemplated at the time of acquisition. We are concurrently conducting Phase I and pre-clinical trials using the acquired intangibles, and we
have entered into certain significant licensing agreements for use of these acquired intangibles.

Historically we have recorded patents at cost and amortized these costs using the straight-line method over the expected useful lives of the
patents or 17 years, whichever is less. Patent cost consists of the consideration paid for patents and related legal costs.  Effective June 1, 2009, in
connection with our acquisition of VGX Pharmaceuticals, all new patent costs will be expensed as incurred.  Patent cost currently capitalized
will continue to be amortized over the expected life of the patent.  The effect of this change was immaterial to prior periods.  License costs are
recorded based on the fair value of consideration paid and amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the expected useful life of
the underlying patents or the term of the related license agreement. As of September 30, 2009, our intangible assets resulting from the
acquisition of VGX and Inovio AS, and additional intangibles including previous capitalized patent costs and license costs, net of accumulated
amortization, totaled $13.5 million.
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The determination of the value of such intangible assets requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect our consolidated
financial statements. We assess potential impairments to intangible assets when there is evidence that events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recovered. Our judgments regarding the existence of impairment indicators and future
cash flows related to intangible assets are based on operational performance of our acquired businesses, market conditions and other factors. If
impairment is indicated, we reduce the carrying value of the intangible asset to fair value. While our current and historical operating and cash
flow losses are potential indicators of impairment, we believe the future cash flows to be received from our intangible assets will exceed the
intangible assets� carrying value, and accordingly, we have not recognized any impairment losses through September 30, 2009.

Although there are inherent uncertainties in this assessment process, the estimates and assumptions we use are consistent with our internal
planning. If these estimates or their related assumptions change in the future, we may be required to record an impairment charge on all or a
portion of our goodwill and intangible assets. Furthermore, we cannot predict the occurrence of future impairment-triggering events nor the
impact such events might have on our reported asset values. Future events could cause us to conclude that impairment indicators exist and that
goodwill or other intangible assets associated with our acquired businesses are impaired. Any resulting impairment loss could have an adverse
impact on our results of operations.

Purchase Price Allocation.  The purchase price allocation for acquisitions requires extensive use of accounting estimates and judgments to
allocate the purchase price to the identifiable tangible and intangible assets acquired, including in-process research and development, and
liabilities assumed based on their respective fair values. Additionally, we must determine whether an acquired entity is considered to be a
business or a set of net assets, because a portion of the purchase price can only be allocated to goodwill in a business combination.

Stock-based Compensation.  Stock-based compensation cost is estimated at the grant date based on the fair-value of the award and is recognized
as an expense ratably over the requisite service period of the award. Determining the appropriate fair-value model and calculating the fair value
of stock-based awards at the grant date requires considerable judgment, including estimating stock price volatility, expected option life and
forfeiture rates. We develop our estimates based on historical data. If factors change and we employ different assumptions in future periods, the
compensation expense that we record may differ significantly from what we have recorded in the current period. A small change in the estimates
used may have a relatively large change in the estimated valuation. We use the Black-Scholes pricing model to value stock option awards. We
recognize compensation expense using the straight-line amortization method.

Auction Rate Securities and Auction Rate Securities Rights.  We account for Auction Rate Securities (�ARS�) under the authoritative guidance for
certain investments in debt and equity securities and fair value measurements. We account for ARS Rights using the fair value option for
financial assets and financial liabilities. Our investments in ARS and our ARS Rights are recorded at their estimated fair value as there is
currently no liquid market which indicates value. We have used a discounted cash flow model to determine the estimated fair value of our
investment in ARS and our ARS Rights as of September 30, 2009. The assumptions used in preparing the discounted cash flow model include
estimates for interest rates, timing and amount of cash flows and expected holding period of the ARS and ARS Rights. Changes in the estimated
fair value of the ARS and ARS Rights are reflected in the consolidated statement of operations as �Other expense, net.�

Registered Common Stock Warrants.  We account for registered common stock warrants under the authoritative guidance on  accounting for
derivative financial instruments indexed to, and potentially settled in, a company�s own stock, on the understanding that in compliance with
applicable securities laws, the registered warrants require the issuance of registered securities upon exercise and do not sufficiently preclude an
implied right to net cash settlement. We classify registered warrants on the consolidated balance sheet as a current liability which is revalued at
each balance sheet date subsequent to the initial issuance. Determining the appropriate fair-value model and calculating the fair value of
registered warrants requires considerable judgment, including estimating stock price volatility and expected warrant life. We develop our
estimates based on historical data. A small change in the estimates used may have a relatively large change in the estimated valuation. We use
the Black-Scholes pricing model to value the registered warrants. Changes in the fair market value of the warrants are reflected in the
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

We describe below recent pronouncements that have had or may have a significant effect on our financial statements. We do not discuss recent
pronouncements that are not anticipated to have an impact on or are unrelated to our financial condition, results of operations, or related
disclosures.
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Adoption of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Collaborative Arrangements Related to the Development and Commercialization of Intellectual Property � In November 2007, new guidance
was issued on accounting for collaborative arrangements related to the development and commercialization of intellectual property. Companies
may enter into arrangements with other companies to jointly develop, manufacture, distribute, and market a product. Often the activities
associated with these arrangements are conducted by the collaborators without the creation of a separate legal entity (that is, the arrangement is
operated as a �virtual joint venture�). The arrangements generally provide that the collaborators will share, based on contractually defined
calculations, the profits or losses from the associated activities. Periodically, the collaborators share financial information related to product
revenues generated (if any) and costs incurred that may trigger a sharing payment for the combined profits or losses. The consensus requires
collaborators in such an arrangement to present the result of activities for which they act as the principal on a gross basis and report any
payments received from (made to) other collaborators based on other applicable GAAP or, in the absence of other applicable GAAP, based on
analogy to authoritative accounting literature or a reasonable, rational, and consistently applied accounting policy election.  This guidance is
effective for collaborative arrangements in place at the beginning of the annual period beginning after December 15, 2008. The adoption of this
guidance did not have a material impact on our condensed consolidated financial statements.

Business Combinations � In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued new guidance on business combinations
which establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer in a business combination recognizes and measures the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed in a business combination, including the treatment of contingent consideration, pre-acquisition contingencies, transaction
costs, in-process research and development and restructuring costs. In addition, under the guidance, changes in an acquired entity�s deferred tax
assets and uncertain tax positions after the measurement period will impact income tax expense. This statement was effective for us with respect
to business combination transactions for which the acquisition date is after December 31, 2008. Effective January 1, 2009, we implemented this
guidance. We expect this guidance will have an impact on the consolidated financial statements but the nature and magnitude of the specific
effects will depend upon the nature, terms and size of the acquisitions consummated after January 1, 2009.

Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets � In April 2008, the FASB issued guidance on the determination of the useful life of
intangible assets.  This guidance amends the factors to be considered in assumptions used to determine the useful lives of recognized intangible
assets recognized under previous guidance. The guidance applies to intangible assets with contractual lives that are acquired individually or with
a group of assets as well as those assets acquired in a business combination. The guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2008 and interim periods. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on our condensed consolidated financial
statements.

Convertible Debt Instruments That May Be Settled in Cash upon Conversion � In May 2008, the FASB ratified guidance on accounting for
convertible debt instruments that may be settled in cash upon conversion (including partial cash settlement).  This guidance specifies that issuers
of such instruments should separately account for the liability and equity components in a manner that will reflect the entity�s nonconvertible
debt borrowing rate when interest cost is recognized in subsequent periods. This guidance is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years.  The adoption of this guidance did not have a material
impact on the condensed consolidated financial statements.

Accounting for Defensive Intangible Assets � In November 2008, FASB ratified guidance on accounting for defensive intangible assets. The
guidance applies to defensive intangible assets, which are acquired intangible assets that the acquirer does not intend to actively use but intends
to hold to prevent its competitors from obtaining access to them. As these assets are separately identifiable, this guidance requires an acquiring
entity to account for defensive intangible assets as a separate unit of accounting which should be amortized to expense over the period the asset
diminished in value. Defensive intangible assets must be recognized at fair value in accordance with the topic on business combinations.  This
guidance is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008.  The adoption of this guidance did not
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have a material impact on our condensed consolidated financial statements.

Interim Fair Value Disclosures � In April 2009, the FASB issued new guidance on interim disclosure about fair value of financial instruments.
This guidance requires interim disclosures regarding the fair values of financial instruments that are within the scope of disclosures about the fair
value of financial instruments. Additionally, this guidance requires disclosure of the methods and significant assumptions used to estimate the
fair value of financial instruments on an interim basis as well as changes of the methods and significant assumptions from prior periods. This
guidance does not change the accounting treatment for these financial instruments and is effective for interim and annual periods ending after
June 15, 2009.  The adoption of this guidance did not have an impact on our condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Subsequent Events � In May 2009, the FASB issued guidance on subsequent events, which establishes guidance related to accounting for and
disclosure of events that happen after the date of the balance sheet but before the release of the financial statements. This guidance is based on
the same principles as those that currently exist in the auditing standards.  However, the new standard does make important changes such as
eliminating Type I and Type II subsequent events and requiring an entity to disclose the date through which it evaluated subsequent events.  This
topic is effective for interim or annual periods ending after June 15, 2009 (see Note 2 in the notes to the financial statements included in this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q).

Accounting Standards Codification � In June 2009, the FASB issued Topic 105 � Generally Accepted Accounting Principles Amendments Based
on Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 168 � The FASB Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2009-01), which updates the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC or Codification) to state that the Codification is to be the single source of authoritative GAAP, other than the guidance put
forth by the SEC.  All other accounting literature not included in the Codification is to be considered non-authoritative.  The updates to the
Codification contained in ASU No. 2009-01 were effective for interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009.  Inovio
implemented the guidance set forth by ASU No. 2009-01, recognizing the Codification as the single source of authoritative GAAP, other than
the guidance put forth by the SEC, on July 1, 2009.  The adoption of this topic did not have an impact on our condensed consolidated financial
statements.

Pending adoption of recent accounting pronouncements

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities � In June 2009, the FASB issued new guidance on consolidation of variable interest entities.  The
guidance will significantly affect various elements of consolidation under existing accounting standards, including the determination of whether
an entity is a variable interest entity and whether an enterprise is a variable interest entity�s primary beneficiary.  This new guidance is effective
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2009 and requires additional disclosures about the reporting entity�s involvement with
variable-interest entities and any significant changes in risk exposure due to that involvement as well as its effect on the entity�s financial
statements. This guidance will be effective January 1, 2010 and is not expected to have a significant impact on our financial statements.

Results of Operations

Revenue. We had total revenue of $3.6 million and $6.5 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009, compared to $455,000
and $1.8 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, respectively.  Revenue primarily consists of license fees, milestone
payments and amounts received from collaborative research and development agreements, grants and government contracts.

Revenue from license fees and milestone payments was $2.1 million and $4.6 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009,
respectively, as compared to $215,000 and $612,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, respectively.  The increase in
revenue under license fees and milestone payments for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2009, as compared to the
comparable periods in 2008, was mainly due to the acceleration of $2.1 million and $4.2 million for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2009, respectively, of deferred revenues recognized as a result of the cancellation of the Wyeth collaboration and licensing
agreement in July 2009.
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During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009, we recorded revenue under collaborative research and development arrangements
of $33,000 and $120,000, respectively, as compared to $240,000 and $1.2 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008,
respectively.   This decrease in revenue was primarily due to a decrease in Merck collaborative research billings from $240,000 and $713,000 in
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, respectively, to $33,000 and $120,000 in the three and nine months ended September 30,
2009, respectively.  The decrease was also due to no billings to Wyeth related to our collaborative agreement in 2009, as compared to no billings
and $446,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, respectively.  Revenues from collaborative research and development
arrangements are expected to continue to decline, as Wyeth terminated its collaboration and licensing agreement as of July 2009 and, under our
research and collaboration agreement with Merck, we have provided the majority of the required device development for use in their clinical
trials and we believe that development activities will be limited until trial results are obtained.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009, we recorded grant and miscellaneous revenue of $1.5 million and $1.8 million,
respectively.  There was no grant and miscellaneous revenue for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008.  The increase in grant and
miscellaneous revenue for the three and nine months ended September 30,
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2009, as compared to the comparable periods in 2008, was primarily due to revenues recognized from VGX�s contract with the National Institute
of Allergy and Infectious Diseases (�NIAID�) and the PATH Malaria Vaccine Initiative (�MVI�) of $1.4 million and $55,000, respectively, since
June 1, 2009, and from the Department of Defense (�U.S. Army�) grant of $113,000 and $293,000 for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2009, respectively.  The NIAID contract is for five years with two one-year options (period of performance is September 30,
2008 � September 29, 2015 including the two options).  The value for the five years is $21.3 million with option years six and seven valued at
$1.2 million and $1.1 million, respectively, for a total potential value of $23.6 million, and will fund research and development for HIV
DNA-based vaccines delivered via our proprietary electroporation system. The U.S. Army grant has a total value of $933,000, will fund research
and development of DNA-based vaccines delivered via our proprietary electroporation system and will run through May 2010. This project is
focused on identifying DNA vaccine candidates with the potential to provide rapid, robust immunity to protect against bio-warfare and bioterror
attacks. PATH is an international nonprofit organization funded by the private donors.  Inovio has a research program and agreement with the
PATH MVI to evaluate in a preclinical feasibility study Inovio�s SynCon� DNA vaccine development platform to target antigens from
Plasmodium species and deliver them intradermally using the CELLECTRA® electroporation device. The agreement with MVI is for $685,000
and will run through February 2010.

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2009, were $3.4 million and $5.6 million, respectively, compared to $1.3 million and $4.6 million for
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, respectively.  The increase in research and development
expenses for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009, as compared to the comparable periods in 2008,
was primarily due to higher costs related to work performed for the NIAID contract as well as higher other outside
services and contract labor expenses related to research and development projects.  The increase was partially offset
by a decrease in research and development expenses incurred by Inovio AS and Inovio Tec as these companies are in
the process of being dissolved, decreased personnel costs due to lower employee headcount on average throughout the
year, as well as a decrease in outside lab testing and lab and engineering supply purchases.

General and Administrative Expenses.  General and administrative expenses, which include business development expenses and the
amortization of intangible assets, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009, were $3.8 million and $11.1 million, respectively, as
compared to $1.9 million and $7.4 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, respectively. The increase in general and
administrative expenses for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009, as compared to the comparable periods in 2008, was primarily
due to extraordinary legal and related fees associated with the Merger and other corporate matters.   We expect these legal fees to decrease in
future quarters. Upon closing of Merger, we also incurred costs that would have not been incurred in the comparable period in 2008, such as
Merger related compensation to key employees, higher amortization expense as a result of the intangible assets that were acquired from VGX,
and higher employee stock based compensation due to the accelerated vesting of all Inovio stock options.  The increase was also attributed to
higher accounting, audit and valuation fees related to the Merger and the combined company. These increases were partially offset by a decrease
in outside consulting services related to partnering our SECTA therapy program and other corporate advisory services.

Stock-based Compensation. Stock-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date, based on the fair value of the award reduced by
estimated forfeitures, and is recognized as expense over the employee�s requisite service period. Total compensation cost for our stock plans for
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 was $749,000 and $1.6 million, respectively.  From these amounts, $389,000 and $541,000
was included in research and development expenses and $360,000 and $1.1 million was included in general and administrative expenses,
respectively.  Total compensation cost for our stock plans for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 was $270,000 and $797,000,
respectively.  From these amounts, $76,000 and $222,000 was included in research and development expenses and $194,000 and $575,000 was
included in general and administrative expenses, respectively. The increase in stock-based compensation cost for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2009 as compared to the comparable periods in 2008 was primarily due to the accelerated vesting of Inovio employee
stock options as a result of the Merger.
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Interest Income (Expense), net. Interest income (expense), net, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009, was $(27,000) and
$(23,000), respectively, as compared to $97,000 and $587,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, respectively. The
decrease in interest income/(expense), net, for the first nine months of 2009, as compared to 2008, was primarily due to a lower cash and
investments balance and lower average interest rate, as well as an increase in interest expense related to the long term convertible debt obtained
in connection with the Merger.  This debt was converted to common stock in August 2009.

Other Income(Expense), net. We recorded other income (expense), net, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 of ($2.9
million) and ($3.1 million), respectively, as compared to $307,000 and $220,000 for the three
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and nine months ended September 30, 2008, respectively. The increase in other income (expense), net, is primarily due to the revaluation of
registered common stock warrants issued by us in October 2006, August 2007 and July 2009.  We are required to revalue the warrants at each
balance sheet date to fair value.  If unexercised, the warrants will expire at various dates between August 2010 and July 2014.

Gain (Loss) from investment in affiliated entity. Gain (loss) is a result of the change in the investment fair market value as of September 30,
2009.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, our primary uses of cash have been to finance research and development activities including clinical trial activities in the oncology,
DNA vaccines and other immunotherapy areas of our business. Since inception, we have satisfied our cash requirements principally from
proceeds from the sale of equity securities, such as the recently completed financing discussed in more detail below.

Effective August 4, 2009, the outstanding convertible subordinated promissory notes were automatically converted into 4,600,681 shares of our
common stock based on accrued interest.  Such shares are subject to a lock-up agreement which provides that such shares may not be sold for a
period of 180 days following the date we closed the Merger, provided that such restriction lapsed with respect to 50% of such shares on that date
that is 90 days from the date we closed the Merger.

Working Capital and Liquidity

As of September 30, 2009, we had working capital of $27.2 million as compared to $554,000 as of December 31, 2008. The increase in working
capital during the nine months ended September 30, 2009 was primarily due to our recent financing. On July 29, 2009, we entered into a
securities purchase agreement with certain institutional investors relating to the sale and issuance of (a) 11,111,110 shares of common stock and
(b) warrants to purchase a total of 2,777,776 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $3.50 per share, for an aggregate purchase price
of approximately $30.0 million.  The warrants will be exercisable beginning six months after issuance and will expire six months from the date
they are first exercisable. The shares of common stock and warrants were sold in units, consisting of one share of common stock and a warrant
to purchase 0.25 of a share of common stock, at a purchase price of $2.70 per unit.  The offering closed on July 31, 2009.  We received proceeds
from the funding of approximately $28.4 million, after deducting offering expenses.

The change in working capital is also due to ARS investment securities and the related ARS Rights being reclassified from long-term assets to
current assets due to the time frame in which they can be readily convertible to cash, and higher account receivable balances, offset by
expenditures related to our research and development activities, as well as various general and administrative expenses related to legal,
consultants, accounting and audit, and corporate development. We believe that our cash and cash equivalents are sufficient to meet our planned
working capital requirements through the second half of 2011.
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Our ARS are municipal debt obligations with a long-term maturity. Due to conditions in the global credit markets these securities, representing a
par value of $13.6 million, are currently not liquid.

In December 2008, we, via our wholly-owned subsidiary Genetronics, which holds the ARS, accepted an offer of ARS Rights from UBS. The
ARS Rights permit us to require UBS to purchase our ARS at par value at any time during the period of June 30, 2010 through July 2, 2012. If
we do not exercise our ARS Rights, the ARS will continue to accrue interest as determined by the terms of the ARS. If the ARS Rights are not
exercised before July 2, 2012 they will expire and UBS will have no further obligation to buy our ARS. UBS has the discretion to purchase or
sell our ARS at any time without prior notice so long as we receive a payment at par upon any sale or disposition. UBS will only exercise its
discretion to purchase or sell our ARS for the purpose of restructurings, dispositions or other solutions that will provide us with par value for our
ARS. As a condition to accepting the offer of ARS Rights, we released UBS from all claims except claims for consequential damages relating to
its marketing and sales of ARS. We also agreed not to serve as a class representative or receive benefits under any class action settlement or
investor fund.

In conjunction with the acceptance of the ARS Rights, we also amended our existing loan agreement with UBS Bank USA, increasing the
existing credit line up to $12.1 million, with the ARS pledged as collateral. The loan is treated as a �no net cost loan�, as it bears interest at a rate
equal to the average rate of interest paid to Genetronics on the pledged ARS, and the net interest cost to Genetronics is zero. We fully drew
down on the line of credit in December 2008.
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Historically, the fair value of ARS approximated par value. While we continue to earn interest on our ARS at the maximum contractual rates,
these investments are not currently trading and therefore do not currently have a readily determinable market value. Accordingly, the estimated
fair value of the ARS no longer approximates par value. We have used a discounted cash flow model to determine the estimated fair value of our
investment in ARS and our ARS Rights as of September 30, 2009. The assumptions used in preparing the discounted cash flow model include
estimates for interest rates, timing and amount of cash flows and expected holding period of the ARS and ARS Rights.

As of September 30, 2009, we had an accumulated deficit of $169.9 million. We have operated at a loss since 1994, and we expect this to
continue for some time. The amount of the accumulated deficit will continue to increase, as it will be expensive to continue research and
development efforts. If these activities are successful and if we receive approval from the FDA to market DNA vaccines and equipment, then
even more funding will be required to market and sell the approved vaccine products and equipment. The outcome of the above matters cannot
be predicted at this time. We are evaluating potential collaborations as an additional way to fund operations. We will continue to rely on outside
sources of financing to meet our capital needs beyond mid-2011.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

Market risk represents the risk of loss that may impact our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows due to adverse
changes in financial and commodity market prices and rates. We are exposed to market risk primarily in the area of changes in United States of
America interest rates and conditions in the credit markets, and the recent fluctuations in interest rates and availability of funding in the credit
markets primarily impacts the performance of our investments. We do not have any material foreign currency or other derivative financial
instruments. Under our current policies, we do not use interest rate derivative instruments to manage exposure to interest rate changes. We
attempt to increase the safety and preservation of our invested principal funds by limiting default risk, market risk and reinvestment risk. We
mitigate default risk by investing in investment grade securities.

Fair Value measurements

All of our investment securities are classified as trading securities and are reported on the condensed consolidated balance sheet at market value.
Our investment securities consist of auction rate securities (�ARS�) issued primarily by municipalities, with a par value of approximately
$13.6 million. As a result of the negative conditions in the global credit markets, our ARS are currently not liquid, and we could be required to
hold them until they are redeemed by the issuer or to maturity. In the event we need to access the funds that are in an illiquid state, we will not
be able to do so without a loss of principal, until the securities are redeemed by the issuer or they mature.

In December 2008, we, via our wholly-owned subsidiary Genetronics, which holds the ARS, accepted an offer of ARS Rights from our
investment advisor, UBS Financial Services, Inc., a subsidiary of UBS AG, or UBS. The ARS Rights permit us to require UBS to purchase our
ARS at par value at any time during the period of June 30, 2010 through July 2, 2012. If we do not exercise our ARS Rights, the ARS will
continue to accrue interest as determined by the terms of the ARS. If the ARS Rights are not exercised before July 2, 2012 they will expire and
UBS will have no further obligation to buy our ARS. UBS has the discretion to purchase or sell our ARS at any time without prior notice so long
as we receive a payment at par upon any sale or disposition. UBS will only exercise its discretion to purchase or sell our ARS for the purpose of
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restructurings, dispositions or other solutions that will provide us with par value for our ARS. As a condition to accepting the offer of ARS
Rights, we released UBS from all claims except claims for consequential damages relating to its marketing and sales of ARS. We also agreed
not to serve as a class representative or receive benefits under any class action settlement or investor fund.

In conjunction with the acceptance of the ARS Rights, we also amended our existing loan agreement with UBS Bank USA, increasing the
existing credit line up to $12.1 million, with the ARS pledged as collateral. The loan will be treated as a �no net cost loan�, as it will bear interest
at a rate equal to the average rate of interest paid to us on the pledged ARS, and our net interest cost will be zero. We fully drew down on the
line of credit in December 2008.

Foreign Currency Risk

We have operated primarily in the United States of America and most transactions during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009,
have been made in U.S. dollars. Accordingly, we have not had any material exposure to foreign currency rate fluctuations, with the exception of
the valuation of our equity investment in VGX International.  We do not have any foreign currency hedging instruments in place.
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We have conducted clinical trials in Europe in conjunction with several Clinical Research Organizations (�CRO�s�), where we have clinical sites
being monitored by Clinical Research Associates (�CRA�s�). While invoices relating to these clinical trials are generally denominated in U.S.
dollars, our financial results could be affected by factors such as inflation in foreign currencies, in relation to the U.S. dollar, in markets where
these vendors have assisted us in conducting these clinical trials.

Certain transactions related to our Company and our subsidiaries Inovio AS and Inovio Asia Pte. Ltd. (�IAPL�), are denominated primarily in
foreign currencies, including Euros, British Pounds, Canadian Dollars, Norwegian Kroner, Swedish Krona, and Singapore Dollars. Our equity
investment in VGX International is denominated in South Korean Won.  As a result, our financial results could be affected by factors such as
changes in foreign currency exchange rates or weak economic conditions in foreign markets where Inovio conducts business, including the
impact of the existing crisis in the global financial markets in such countries and the impact on both the U.S. dollar and the noted foreign
currencies.

We do not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. We do not engage in exchange rate hedging or hold or issue foreign
exchange contracts for trading purposes. Currently, we do not expect the impact of fluctuations in the relative fair value of other currencies to be
material in 2009.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures, which are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports we file or
submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission�s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer, or CEO, and Chief Financial Officer, or CFO, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosures.

Based on an evaluation carried out as of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report, under the supervision and with the participation of
our management, including our CEO and CFO, our CEO and CFO have concluded that, as of the end of such period, our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) were effective as of September 30, 2009.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have not been any changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a�15(f) and 15d�15(f) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934) that occurred during the three months ended September 30, 2009, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely
to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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Part II. Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

Not applicable.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider and evaluate each of the following factors as well as the other information in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q,
including our financial statements and the related notes, in evaluating our business and prospects.  The risks and uncertainties described below
are not the only ones we face.  Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently consider immaterial may also
impair our business operations.  If any of the following risks actually occur, our business and financial results could be harmed.  In that case,
the trading price of our common stock could decline.   You should also consider the more detailed description of our business contained in our
annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008, which we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 31,
2009.
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Risks Related to Our Business and Industry
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We have incurred losses since inception, expect to incur significant net losses in the foreseeable future and may never become profitable.

Edgar Filing: INOVIO BIOMEDICAL CORP - Form 10-Q

57



We have experienced significant operating losses to date; as of September 30, 2009 our accumulated deficit was approximately $169.9
million.  We have generated limited revenues, primarily consisting of license and grant revenue, and interest income.  We expect to continue
to incur substantial additional operating losses for at least the next several years as we advance our clinical trials and research and
development activities.  We may never successfully commercialize our electroporation-based DNA vaccine delivery technology or vaccine
product candidates and thus may never have any significant future revenues or achieve and sustain profitability.
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We have limited sources of revenue and our success is dependent on our ability to develop our vaccine and other product candidates and
electroporation equipment.
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Other than a DNA therapy for food animals, whose sales have not been significant, we do not sell any products and may not have any other
products commercially available for several years, if at all.  Our ability to generate future revenues depends heavily on our success in:

• developing and securing U.S. and/or foreign regulatory approvals for our product candidates, including securing regulatory approval for
conducting clinical trials with product candidates;

• developing our electroporation-based DNA delivery technology;

• commercializing any products for which we receive approval from the FDA and foreign regulatory authorities; and

• developing a market for LifeTide and/or our other animal health product candidates.

Our electroporation equipment and product candidates will require extensive additional clinical study and evaluation, regulatory approval in
multiple jurisdictions, substantial investment and significant marketing efforts before we generate any revenues from product sales.  We are not
permitted to market or promote our electroporation equipment and product candidates before we receive regulatory approval from the FDA or
comparable foreign regulatory authorities.  If we do not receive regulatory approval for and successfully commercialize any products, we will
not generate any revenues from sales of electroporation equipment and products, and we may not be able to continue our operations.

None of our human vaccine product candidates has been approved for sale, and we may not develop commercially successful vaccine
products.
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Our human vaccine programs are in the early stages of research and development, and currently include vaccine product candidates in discovery,
pre-clinical studies and Phase 1 clinical studies.  There is limited data regarding the efficiency of DNA vaccines compared with conventional
vaccines, and we must conduct a substantial amount of additional research and development before any regulatory authority will approve any of
our vaccine product candidates.  The success of our efforts to develop and commercialize our vaccine product candidates could fail for a number
of reasons.  For example, we could experience delays in product development and clinical trials.  Our vaccine product candidates could be found
to be ineffective or unsafe, or otherwise fail to receive necessary regulatory clearances.  The products, if safe and effective, could be difficult to
manufacture on a large scale or uneconomical to market, or our competitors could develop superior vaccine products more quickly and
efficiently or more effectively market their competing products.

We will need substantial additional capital to develop our electroporation-based DNA vaccine delivery technology and vaccine and other
product candidates and for our future operations.
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Conducting the costly and time consuming research, pre-clinical and clinical testing necessary to obtain regulatory approvals and bring our
vaccine delivery technology and product candidates to market will require a commitment of substantial funds in excess of our current capital. 
Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including, among others: the progress of our current and new product development
programs; the progress, scope and results of our pre-clinical and clinical testing; the time and cost involved in obtaining regulatory approvals;
the cost of manufacturing our products and product candidates; the cost of prosecuting, enforcing and defending against patent infringement
claims and other intellectual property rights; competing technological and market developments; and our ability and costs to establish and
maintain collaborative and other arrangements with third parties to assist in potentially bringing our products to market.

Additional financing may not be available on acceptable terms, or at all.  Domestic and international capital markets have been experiencing
heightened volatility and turmoil, making it more difficult to raise capital through the issuance of equity securities.  Furthermore, as a result of
the recent volatility in the capital markets, the cost and availability of credit has been and may continue to be adversely affected by illiquid credit
markets and wider credit spreads.  Concern about the stability of the markets generally and the strength of counterparties specifically has led
many lenders and institutional investors to
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reduce, and in some cases cease to provide, funding to borrowers.  To the extent we are able to raise additional capital through the sale of equity
securities or we issue securities in connection with another transaction, the ownership position of existing stockholders could be substantially
diluted.  If additional funds are raised through the issuance of preferred stock or debt securities, these securities are likely to have rights,
preferences and privileges senior to our common stock and may involve significant fees, interest expense, restrictive covenants and the granting
of security interests in our assets.  Fluctuating interest rates could also increase the costs of any debt financing we may obtain.  Raising capital
through a licensing or other transaction involving our intellectual property could require us to relinquish valuable intellectual property rights and
thereby sacrifice long term value for short-term liquidity.

Our failure to successfully address ongoing liquidity requirements would have a substantially negative impact on our business.  If we are unable
to obtain additional capital on acceptable terms when needed, we may need to take actions that adversely affect our business, our stock price and
our ability to achieve cash flow in the future, including possibly surrendering our rights to some technologies or product opportunities, delaying
our clinical trials or curtailing or ceasing operations.

If we are unable to attract and retain key personnel and advisors, it may adversely affect our ability to obtain financing, pursue
collaborations or develop or market our product candidates.
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To pursue our business strategy, we will need to attract and retain qualified scientific personnel and managers, including personnel with
expertise in clinical trials, government regulation, manufacturing, marketing and other areas.  Competition for qualified personnel is intense
among companies, academic institutions and other organizations.  If we are unable to attract and retain key personnel and advisors, it may
negatively affect our ability to successfully develop, test, commercialize and market our products and product candidates.

We may not successfully integrate the VGX Pharmaceuticals business or realize all of the anticipated benefits of our acquisition of VGX.
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On June 1, 2009, we completed the Merger.  To be successful after the Merger, we need to combine and integrate the separate organizations and
operations of the two companies.  The combination of two independent companies is a complex, costly, and time-consuming process.  As a
result, we must devote significant management attention and resources to integrating the diverse business practices and operations of the two
companies.  We may encounter difficulties that could harm the combined businesses, adversely affect our financial condition, and cause our
stock price to decline, including the following:

• We may have difficulty maintaining employee morale and retaining key managers and other employees as we take steps to combine the
personnel and business cultures of two separate organizations into one, and to eliminate duplicate positions and functions;

• We may have difficulty preserving important relationships with others, such as strategic partners, customers, and suppliers, who may delay
or defer decisions on agreements with us, or seek to change existing agreements with us, because of the Merger;

• We may encounter unanticipated issues in integrating complex information technology, communications, and other systems used by the
separate companies; and

• Our integration efforts will result in significant costs, including costs relating to employees and facilities, and may result in substantially
greater costs and expenses than currently anticipated, and we may identify liabilities of the combined business that were not anticipated.

The integration process may divert the attention of our officers and management from day-to-day operations and disrupt our business,
particularly if we encounter these types of difficulties.  We have not previously completed a merger or acquisition comparable in size or scope to
this transaction.  The failure of the combined company to meet the challenges involved in the integration process could cause an interruption of,
or a loss of momentum in, the activities of the combined company and could seriously harm our results of operations.

Even if the operations of the two organizations are integrated successfully, the combined company may not fully realize the expected benefits of
the transaction, including the synergies, cost savings or growth opportunities, whether within the anticipated time frame, or anytime in the
future.
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We face intense and increasing competition and many of our competitors have significantly greater resources and experience.
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Many other companies are pursuing other forms of treatment or prevention for diseases that we target.  For example, many of our competitors
are working on developing and testing H5N1, H1N1 and universal influenza vaccines, and several H1N1 vaccines developed by our competitors
have been approved for human use.  Our competitors and potential competitors include large pharmaceutical and medical device companies and
more established biotechnology companies.  These companies have significantly greater financial and other resources and greater expertise than
us in research and development, securing government contracts and grants to support research and development efforts, manufacturing,
pre-clinical and clinical testing, obtaining regulatory approvals and marketing.  This may make it easier for them to respond more quickly than
us to new or changing opportunities, technologies or market needs.  Many of these competitors operate large, well-funded research and
development programs and have significant products approved or in development.  Small companies may also prove to be significant
competitors, particularly through collaborative arrangements with large pharmaceutical companies or through acquisition or development of
intellectual property rights.  Our potential competitors also include academic institutions, governmental agencies and other public and private
research organizations that conduct research, seek patent protection and establish collaborative arrangements for product and clinical
development and marketing.  Research and development by others may seek to render our technologies or products obsolete or noncompetitive.

If we lose or are unable to secure collaborators or partners, or if our collaborators or partners do not apply adequate resources to their
relationships with us, our product development and potential for profitability will suffer.
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We have entered into, or may enter into, distribution, co-promotion, partnership, sponsored research and other arrangements for development,
manufacturing, sales, marketing and other commercialization activities relating to our products.  For example, we have entered into a license and
collaboration agreement with Merck.  The amount and timing of resources applied by our collaborators are largely outside of our control.

Wyeth terminated one of our existing collaboration agreements.  If any of our other current or future collaborators breaches or terminates our
agreements, or fails to conduct our collaborative activities in a timely manner, our commercialization of products could be diminished or
blocked completely.  It is possible that collaborators will change their strategic focus, pursue alternative technologies or develop alternative
products, either on their own or in collaboration with others.  Further, we may be forced to fund programs that were previously funded by our
collaborators, and we may not have, or be able to access, the necessary funding.  The effectiveness of our partners, if any, in marketing our
products will also affect our revenues and earnings.

We desire to enter into new collaborative agreements.  However, we may not be able to successfully negotiate any additional collaborative
arrangements and, if established, these relationships may not be scientifically or commercially successful.  Our success in the future depends in
part on our ability to enter into agreements with other highly-regarded organizations.  This can be difficult due to internal and external
constraints placed on these organizations.  Some organizations may have insufficient administrative and related infrastructure to enable
collaborations with many companies at once, which can extend the time it takes to develop, negotiate and implement a collaboration.  Once
news of discussions regarding possible collaborations are known in the medical community, regardless of whether the news is accurate, failure
to announce a collaborative agreement or the entity�s announcement of a collaboration with another entity may result in adverse speculation
about us, resulting in harm to our reputation and our business.

Disputes could also arise between us and our existing or future collaborators, as to a variety of matters, including financial and intellectual
property matters or other obligations under our agreements.  These disputes could be both expensive and time-consuming and may result in
delays in the development and commercialization of our products or could damage our relationship with a collaborator.

A small number of licensing partners and government contracts account for a substantial portion of our revenue.
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We currently derive, and in the past we have derived, a significant portion of our revenue from a limited number of licensing partners and
government grants and contracts.  For example, during the year ended December 31, 2008, Merck accounted for approximately 40% of our
consolidated revenue, and during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009, Wyeth accounted for approximately 57% and 65%,
respectively, of our consolidated revenue and our contract with the National Institute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases (NIAID) accounted for
approximately 20% and 21%, respectively, of our consolidated revenue.    Wyeth terminated its agreement with us in July 2009, and we believe
that development activities for Merck will be limited for the foreseeable future.  If we fail to sign additional future contracts with major licensing
partners and the government, if a contract is delayed or deferred, or if an existing contract expires or is cancelled and we fail to replace the
contract with new business, our revenue would be adversely affected.
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We have agreements with government agencies, which are subject to termination and uncertain future funding.
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We have entered into agreements with government agencies, such as the NIAID and the US Army, and we intend to continue entering into these
agreements in the future. Our business is partially dependent on the continued performance by these government agencies of their
responsibilities under these agreements, including adequate continued funding of the agencies and their programs. We have no control over the
resources and funding that government agencies may devote to these agreements, which may be subject to annual renewal and which generally
may be terminated by the government agencies at any time.

Government agencies may fail to perform their responsibilities under these agreements, which may cause them to be terminated by the
government agencies. In addition, we may fail to perform our responsibilities under these agreements. Many of our government agreements are
subject to audits which may occur several years after the period to which the audit relates. If an audit identifies significant unallowable costs, we
could incur a material charge to our earnings or reduction in our cash position. As a result, we may be unsuccessful entering or ineligible to enter
into future government agreements.

Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate significantly.

We expect our operating results to be subject to quarterly fluctuations.  Our net loss and other operating results will be affected by numerous
factors, including:

• variations in the level of expenses related to our electroporation equipment, product candidates or future development programs;

• merger integration expenses;

• addition or termination of clinical trials or funding support;

• any intellectual property infringement lawsuit in which we may become involved;

• any legal claims that may be asserted against us or any of our officers;

• regulatory developments affecting our electroporation equipment and product candidates or those of our competitors;

• our execution of any collaborative, licensing or similar arrangements, and the timing of payments we may make or receive under these
arrangements; and

• if any of our products receives regulatory approval, the levels of underlying demand for our products.
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If our quarterly operating results fall below the expectations of investors or securities analysts, the price of our common stock could decline
substantially.  Furthermore, any quarterly fluctuations in our operating results may, in turn, cause the price of our stock to fluctuate
substantially.  We believe that quarterly comparisons of our financial results are not necessarily meaningful and should not be relied upon as an
indication of our future performance.

If we are unable to obtain FDA approval of our products, we will not be able to commercialize them in the United States.
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We need FDA approval prior to marketing our electroporation equipment and products in the United States.  If we fail to obtain FDA approval
to market our electroporation equipment and product candidates, we will be unable to sell our products in the United States, which will
significantly impair our ability to generate any revenues.

This regulatory review and approval process, which includes evaluation of pre-clinical studies and clinical trials of our products as well as the
evaluation of our manufacturing processes and our third-party contract manufacturers� facilities, is lengthy, expensive and uncertain.  To receive
approval, we must, among other things, demonstrate with substantial evidence from well-controlled clinical trials that our electroporation
equipment and product candidates are both safe and effective for each indication for which approval is sought.  Satisfaction of the approval
requirements typically takes several years and the time needed to satisfy them may vary substantially, based on the type, complexity and novelty
of the product.  We do not
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know if or when we might receive regulatory approvals for our electroporation equipment and any of our product candidates currently under
development.  Moreover, any approvals that we obtain may not cover all of the clinical indications for which we are seeking approval, or could
contain significant limitations in the form of narrow indications, warnings, precautions or contra-indications with respect to conditions of use.  In
such event, our ability to generate revenues from such products would be greatly reduced and our business would be harmed.

The FDA has substantial discretion in the approval process and may either refuse to consider our application for substantive review or may form
the opinion after review of our data that our application is insufficient to allow approval of our electroporation equipment and product
candidates.  If the FDA does not consider or approve our application, it may require that we conduct additional clinical, pre-clinical or
manufacturing validation studies and submit that data before it will reconsider our application.  Depending on the extent of these or any other
studies, approval of any applications that we submit may be delayed by several years, or may require us to expend more resources than we have
available.  It is also possible that additional studies, if performed and completed, may not be successful or considered sufficient by the FDA for
approval or even to make our applications approvable.  If any of these outcomes occur, we may be forced to abandon one or more of our
applications for approval, which might significantly harm our business and prospects.

It is possible that none of our products or any product we may seek to develop in the future will ever obtain the appropriate regulatory approvals
necessary for us or our collaborators to commence product sales.  Any delay in obtaining, or an inability to obtain, applicable regulatory
approvals would prevent us from commercializing our products, generating revenues and achieving and sustaining profitability.

Clinical trials involve a lengthy and expensive process with an uncertain outcome, and results of earlier studies and trials may not be
predictive of future trial results.
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Clinical testing is expensive and can take many years to complete, and its outcome is uncertain.  Failure can occur at any time during the clinical
trial process.  The results of pre-clinical studies and early clinical trials of our products may not be predictive of the results of later-stage clinical
trials.  Results from one study may not be reflected or supported by the results of similar studies.  Results of an animal study may not be
indicative of results achievable in human studies.  Human-use equipment and product candidates in later stages of clinical trials may fail to show
the desired safety and efficacy traits despite having progressed through pre-clinical studies and initial clinical testing.  The time required to
obtain approval by the FDA and similar foreign authorities is unpredictable but typically takes many years following the commencement of
clinical trials, depending upon numerous factors.  In addition, approval policies, regulations, or the type and amount of clinical data necessary to
gain approval may change.  We have not obtained regulatory approval for any human-use products.

Our products could fail to complete the clinical trial process for many reasons, including the following:

• we may be unable to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authorities that our electroporation
equipment and a product candidate is safe and effective for any indication;

• the results of clinical trials may not meet the level of statistical significance required by the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory
authorities for approval;

• the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authorities may disagree with the design or implementation of our clinical trials;

• we may be unable to demonstrate that our electroporation equipment and a product candidate�s clinical and other benefits outweigh its safety
risks;

• we may be unable to demonstrate that our electroporation equipment and a product candidate presents an advantage over existing therapies,
or over placebo in any indications for which the FDA requires a placebo-controlled trial;

• the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authorities may disagree with our interpretation of data from pre-clinical studies or clinical trials;

• the data collected from clinical trials of our product candidates may not be sufficient to support the submission of a new drug application or
other submission or to obtain regulatory approval in the United States or elsewhere;
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• the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authorities may fail to approve the manufacturing processes or facilities of us or third-party
manufacturers with which we or our collaborators contract for clinical and commercial supplies; and

• the approval policies or regulations of the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authorities may significantly change in a manner
rendering our clinical data insufficient for approval.

Delays in the commencement or completion of clinical testing could result in increased costs to us and delay or limit our ability to generate
revenues.
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Delays in the commencement or completion of clinical testing could significantly affect our product development costs.  We do not know
whether planned clinical trials will begin on time or be completed on schedule, if at all.  In addition, ongoing clinical trials may not be completed
on schedule, or at all.  The commencement and completion of clinical trials can be delayed for a number of reasons, including delays related to:

• obtaining regulatory approval to commence a clinical trial;

• adverse results from third party clinical trials involving gene based therapies and the regulatory response thereto;

• reaching agreement on acceptable terms with prospective contract research organizations, or CROs, and trial sites, the terms of which can
be subject to extensive negotiation and may vary significantly among different CROs and trial sites;

• future bans or stricter standards imposed on gene based therapy clinical trials;

• manufacturing sufficient quantities of our electroporation equipment and product candidates for use in clinical trials;

• obtaining institutional review board, or IRB, approval to conduct a clinical trial at a prospective site;

• slower than expected recruitment and enrolment of patients to participate in clinical trials for a variety of reasons, including competition
from other clinical trial programs for similar indications;

• retaining patients who have initiated a clinical trial but may be prone to withdraw due to side effects from the therapy, lack of efficacy or
personal issues, or who are lost to further follow-up; and

• collecting, reviewing and analyzing our clinical trial data.

Clinical trials may also be delayed as a result of ambiguous or negative interim results.  In addition, a clinical trial may be suspended or
terminated by us, the FDA, the IRB overseeing the clinical trial at issue, any of our clinical trial sites with respect to that site, or other regulatory
authorities due to a number of factors, including:

• failure to conduct the clinical trial in accordance with regulatory requirements or our clinical protocols;
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• inspection of the clinical trial operations or trial sites by the FDA or other regulatory authorities resulting in the imposition of a clinical
hold;

• unforeseen safety issues; and

• lack of adequate funding to continue the clinical trial.

If we experience delays in completion of, or if we terminate, any of our clinical trials, the commercial prospects for our electroporation
equipment and our product candidates may be harmed and our ability to generate product revenues will be delayed.  In addition, many of the
factors that cause, or lead to, a delay in the commencement or completion of clinical trials may also ultimately lead to the denial of regulatory
approval of a product candidate.  Further, delays in the commencement or completion of clinical trials may adversely affect the trading price of
our common stock.
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We and our collaborators rely on third parties to conduct our clinical trials.  If these third parties do not successfully carry out their
contractual duties or meet expected deadlines, we and our collaborators may not be able to obtain regulatory approval for or commercialize
our product candidates.

Edgar Filing: INOVIO BIOMEDICAL CORP - Form 10-Q

89



Edgar Filing: INOVIO BIOMEDICAL CORP - Form 10-Q

90



We and our collaborators have entered into agreements with contract research organizations (�CROs�) to provide monitors for and to manage data
for our on-going clinical programs.  We and the CROs conducting clinical trials for our electroporation equipment and product candidates are
required to comply with current good clinical practices, or GCPs, regulations and guidelines enforced by the FDA for all of our products in
clinical development.  The FDA enforces GCPs through periodic inspections of trial sponsors, principal investigators and trial sites.  If we or the
CROs conducting clinical trials of our product candidates fail to comply with applicable GCPs, the clinical data generated in the clinical trials
may be deemed unreliable and the FDA may require additional clinical trials before approving any marketing applications.

If any relationships with CROs terminate, we or our collaborators may not be able to enter into arrangements with alternative CROs.  In
addition, these third-party CROs are not our employees, and we cannot control whether or not they devote sufficient time and resources to our
on-going clinical programs or perform trials efficiently.  These CROs may also have relationships with other commercial entities, including our
competitors, for whom they may also be conducting clinical studies or other drug development activities, which could harm our competitive
position.  If CROs do not successfully carry out their contractual duties or obligations or meet expected deadlines, if they need to be replaced, or
if the quality or accuracy of the clinical data they obtain is compromised due to the failure to adhere to our clinical protocols, regulatory
requirements, or for other reasons, our clinical trials may be extended, delayed or terminated, and we may not be able to obtain regulatory
approval for or successfully commercialize our product candidates.  As a result, our financial results and the commercial prospects for our
product candidates would be harmed, our costs could increase and our ability to generate revenues could be delayed.  Cost overruns by or
disputes with our CROs may significantly increase our expenses.

Even if our products receive regulatory approval, they may still face future development and regulatory difficulties.
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Even if U.S. regulatory approval is obtained, the FDA may still impose significant restrictions on a product�s indicated uses or marketing or
impose ongoing requirements for potentially costly post-approval studies.   This governmental oversight may be particularly strict with respect
to gene based therapies.  Our products will also be subject to ongoing FDA requirements governing the labeling, packaging, storage, advertising,
promotion, recordkeeping and submission of safety and other post-market information.  In addition, manufacturers of drug products and their
facilities are subject to continual review and periodic inspections by the FDA and other regulatory authorities for compliance with current good
manufacturing practices, or cGMP, regulations.  If we or a regulatory agency discover previously unknown problems with a product, such as
adverse events of unanticipated severity or frequency, or problems with the facility where the product is manufactured, a regulatory agency may
impose restrictions on that product, the manufacturer or us, including requiring withdrawal of the product from the market or suspension of
manufacturing.  If we, our product candidates or the manufacturing facilities for our product candidates fail to comply with applicable regulatory
requirements, a regulatory agency may:

• issue Warning Letters or untitled letters;

• impose civil or criminal penalties;

• suspend regulatory approval;

• suspend any ongoing clinical trials;

• refuse to approve pending applications or supplements to applications filed by us;

• impose restrictions on operations, including costly new manufacturing requirements; or

• seize or detain products or require us to initiate a product recall.

Even if our products receive regulatory approval in the United States, we may never receive approval or commercialize our products outside
of the United States.
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In order to market any electroporation equipment and product candidates outside of the United States, we must establish and comply with
numerous and varying regulatory requirements of other countries regarding safety and efficacy.  Approval procedures vary among countries and
can involve additional product testing and additional administrative review periods.  The time required to obtain approval in other countries
might differ from that required to obtain FDA approval.  The regulatory approval process in other countries may include all of the risks detailed
above regarding FDA approval in the United States as well as other risks.  Regulatory approval in one country does not ensure regulatory
approval in another, but a
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failure or delay in obtaining regulatory approval in one country may have a negative effect on the regulatory process in others.  Failure to obtain
regulatory approval in other countries or any delay or setback in obtaining such approval could have the same adverse effects detailed above
regarding FDA approval in the United States.  Such effects include the risks that our product candidates may not be approved for all indications
requested, which could limit the uses of our product candidates and have an adverse effect on their commercial potential or require costly,
post-marketing follow-up studies.

We face potential product liability exposure and, if successful claims are brought against us, we may incur substantial liability.

Edgar Filing: INOVIO BIOMEDICAL CORP - Form 10-Q

95



Edgar Filing: INOVIO BIOMEDICAL CORP - Form 10-Q

96



The use of our electroporation equipment and product candidates in clinical trials and the sale of any products for which we obtain marketing
approval expose us to the risk of product liability claims.  Product liability claims might be brought against us by consumers, health care
providers, pharmaceutical companies or others selling or otherwise coming into contact with our products.  If we cannot successfully defend
ourselves against product liability claims, we could incur substantial liabilities.  In addition, regardless of merit or eventual outcome, product
liability claims may result in:

• decreased demand for our product candidates;

• impairment of our business reputation;

• withdrawal of clinical trial participants;

• costs of related litigation;

• distraction of management�s attention from our primary business;

• substantial monetary awards to patients or other claimants;

• loss of revenues; and

• inability to commercialize our products.

We have obtained product liability insurance coverage for our clinical trials, but our insurance coverage may not be sufficient to reimburse us
for any expenses or losses we may suffer.  Moreover, insurance coverage is becoming increasingly expensive, and, in the future, we may not be
able to maintain insurance coverage at a reasonable cost or in sufficient amounts to protect us against losses due to liability.  On occasion, large
judgments have been awarded in class action lawsuits based on products that had unanticipated side effects.  A successful product liability claim
or series of claims brought against us could cause our stock price to decline and, if judgments exceed our insurance coverage, could adversely
affect our business.

We currently have no marketing and sales organization and have no experience in marketing products.  If we are unable to establish
marketing and sales capabilities or enter into agreements with third parties to market and sell our products, we may not be able to generate
product revenues.
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We currently do not have a sales organization for the marketing, sales and distribution of our electroporation equipment and product candidates. 
In order to commercialize any products, we must build our marketing, sales, distribution, managerial and other non-technical capabilities or
make arrangements with third parties to perform these services.  We contemplate establishing our own sales force or seeking third-party partners
to sell our products.  The establishment and development of our own sales force to market any products we may develop will be expensive and
time consuming and could delay any product launch, and we may not be able to successfully develop this capability.  We will also have to
compete with other pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies to recruit, hire, train and retain marketing and sales personnel.  To the extent
we rely on third parties to commercialize our approved products, if any, we will receive less revenues than if we commercialized these products
ourselves.  In addition, we may have little or no control over the sales efforts of third parties involved in our commercialization efforts.  In the
event we are unable to develop our own marketing and sales force or collaborate with a third-party marketing and sales organization, we would
not be able to commercialize our product candidates which would negatively impact our ability to generate product revenues.
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If any of our products for which we receive regulatory approval does not achieve broad market acceptance, the revenues that we generate
from their sales will be limited.
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The commercial success of our electroporation equipment and product candidates for which we obtain marketing approval from the FDA or
other regulatory authorities will depend upon the acceptance of these products by both the medical community and patient population.  Coverage
and reimbursement of our product candidates by third-party payors, including government payors, generally is also necessary for optimal
commercial success.  The degree of market acceptance of any of our approved products will depend on a number of factors, including:

• our ability to provide acceptable evidence of safety and efficacy;

• the relative convenience and ease of administration;

• the prevalence and severity of any adverse side effects;

• limitations or warnings contained in a product�s FDA-approved labeling, including, for example, potential �black box� warnings

• availability of alternative treatments;

• pricing and cost effectiveness;

• the effectiveness of our or any future collaborators� sales and marketing strategies;

• our ability to obtain sufficient third-party coverage or reimbursement; and

• the willingness of patients to pay out of pocket in the absence of third-party coverage.

If our electroporation equipment and product candidates are approved but do not achieve an adequate level of acceptance by physicians, health
care payors and patients, we may not generate sufficient revenue from these products, and we may not become or remain profitable.  In addition,
our efforts to educate the medical community and third-party payors on the benefits of our product candidates may require significant resources
and may never be successful.

We are subject to uncertainty relating to reimbursement policies which, if not favorable to our product candidates, could hinder or prevent
our products� commercial success.
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Our ability to commercialize our electroporation equipment and product candidates successfully will depend in part on the extent to which
governmental authorities, private health insurers and other third-party payors establish appropriate coverage and reimbursement levels for our
product candidates and related treatments.  As a threshold for coverage and reimbursement, third-party payors generally require that drug
products have been approved for marketing by the FDA.  Third-party payors also are increasingly challenging the effectiveness of and prices
charged for medical products and services.  We may not be able to obtain third-party coverage or reimbursement for our products in whole or in
part.

Healthcare reform measures could hinder or prevent our products� commercial success.
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Among policy makers and payors in the United States and elsewhere, there is significant interest in promoting changes in health care systems to
contain health care costs and improve quality.  While reform proposals often involve expanding coverage to more individuals, health care reform
may also involve increased government price controls, additional regulatory mandates and other measures designed to lower medical and
pharmaceutical costs.

The continuing efforts of the government, insurance companies, managed care organizations and other payors of health care services to contain
or reduce costs of health care may adversely affect:

• our ability to set a price we believe is fair for our products;

• our ability to generate revenues and achieve or maintain profitability;

• the availability of capital; and

• our ability to obtain timely approval of our products.
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If we fail to comply with applicable healthcare regulations, we could face substantial penalties and our business, operations and financial
condition could be adversely affected.
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Certain federal and state healthcare laws and regulations pertaining to fraud and abuse and patients� rights may be applicable to our business.  We
could be subject to healthcare fraud and abuse and patient privacy regulation by both the federal government and the states in which we conduct
our business, without limitation.  The laws that may affect our ability to operate include:

• the federal healthcare program Anti-Kickback Statute, which prohibits, among other things, persons from soliciting, receiving or providing
remuneration, directly or indirectly, to induce either the referral of an individual, for an item or service or the purchasing or ordering of a good or
service, for which payment may be made under federal healthcare programs such as the Medicare and Medicaid programs;

• federal false claims laws which prohibit, among other things, individuals or entities from knowingly presenting, or causing to be presented,
claims for payment from Medicare, Medicaid, or other third-party payors that are false or fraudulent;

• the federal Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, which prohibits executing a scheme to defraud any
healthcare benefit program or making false statements relating to healthcare matters and which also imposes certain requirements relating to the
privacy, security and transmission of individually identifiable health information;

• the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, which among other things, strictly regulates drug product marketing, prohibits manufacturers
from marketing drug products for off-label use and regulates the distribution of drug samples; and

• state law equivalents of each of the above federal laws, such as anti-kickback and false claims laws which may apply to items or services
reimbursed by any third-party payor, including commercial insurers, and state laws governing the privacy and security of health information in
certain circumstances, many of which differ from each other in significant ways and often are not preempted by HIPAA, thus complicating
compliance efforts.

Additionally, the compliance environment is changing, with more states, such as California and Massachusetts, mandating implementation of
compliance programs, compliance with industry ethics codes, and spending limits, and other states, such as Vermont, Maine, and Minnesota
requiring reporting to state governments of gifts, compensation, and other remuneration to physicians.  Federal legislation, the Physician
Payments Sunshine Act of 2009, has been proposed and is moving forward in Congress.  This legislation would require disclosure to the federal
government of payments to physicians.  These laws all provide for penalties for non-compliance.  The shifting regulatory environment, along
with the requirement to comply with multiple jurisdictions with different compliance and/or reporting requirements, increases the possibility that
a company may run afoul of one or more laws.

If our operations are found to be in violation of any of the laws described above or any other governmental regulations that apply to us, we may
be subject to penalties, including civil and criminal penalties, damages, fines and the curtailment or restructuring of our operations.  Any
penalties, damages, fines, curtailment or restructuring of our operations could adversely affect our ability to operate our business and our
financial results.  Any action against us for violation of these laws, even if we successfully defend against it, could cause us to incur significant
legal expenses and divert our management�s attention from the operation of our business.  Moreover, achieving and sustaining compliance with
applicable federal and state privacy, security and fraud laws may prove costly.
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If we and the contract manufacturers upon whom we rely fail to produce our systems and product candidates in the volumes that we require
on a timely basis, or fail to comply with stringent regulations, we may face delays in the development and commercialization of our
electroporation equipment and product candidates.
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We manufacture some components of our electroporation systems and utilize the services of contract manufacturers to manufacture the
remaining components of these systems and our product supplies for clinical trials.  The manufacture of our systems and product supplies
requires significant expertise and capital investment, including the development of advanced manufacturing techniques and process controls. 
Manufacturers often encounter difficulties in production, particularly in scaling up for commercial production.  These problems include
difficulties with production costs and yields, quality control, including stability of the equipment and product candidates and quality assurance
testing, shortages of qualified personnel, as well as compliance with strictly enforced federal, state and foreign regulations.  If we or our
manufacturers were to encounter any of these difficulties or our manufacturers otherwise fail to comply with their obligations to us, our ability to
provide our electroporation equipment to our partners and products to patients in our clinical trials or to commercially launch a product would be
jeopardized.  Any delay or interruption in the supply of clinical trial supplies could delay the completion of our clinical trials, increase the costs
associated with maintaining our clinical trial program and, depending upon the period of delay, require us to commence new trials at significant
additional expense or terminate the trials completely.
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In addition, all manufacturers of our products must comply with cGMP requirements enforced by the FDA through its facilities inspection
program.  These requirements include, among other things, quality control, quality assurance and the generation and maintenance of records and
documentation.  Manufacturers of our products may be unable to comply with these cGMP requirements and with other FDA, state and foreign
regulatory requirements.  We have little control over our manufacturers� compliance with these regulations and standards.  A failure to comply
with these requirements may result in fines and civil penalties, suspension of production, suspension or delay in product approval, product
seizure or recall, or withdrawal of product approval.  If the safety of any product is compromised due to our or our manufacturers� failure to
adhere to applicable laws or for other reasons, we may not be able to obtain regulatory approval for or successfully commercialize our products,
and we may be held liable for any injuries sustained as a result.  Any of these factors could cause a delay of clinical trials, regulatory
submissions, approvals or commercialization of our products, entail higher costs or result in our being unable to effectively commercialize our
products.  Furthermore, if our manufacturers fail to deliver the required commercial quantities on a timely basis, pursuant to provided
specifications and at commercially reasonable prices, we may be unable to meet demand for our products and would lose potential revenues.

Our failure to successfully acquire, develop and market additional product candidates or approved products would impair our ability to grow.
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We may acquire, in-license, develop and/or market additional products and product candidates.  The success of these actions depends partly
upon our ability to identify, select and acquire promising product candidates and products.

The process of proposing, negotiating and implementing a license or acquisition of a product candidate or approved product is lengthy and
complex.  Other companies, including some with substantially greater financial, marketing and sales resources, may compete with us for the
license or acquisition of product candidates and approved products.  We have limited resources to identify and execute the acquisition or
in-licensing of third-party products, businesses and technologies and integrate them into our current infrastructure.  Moreover, we may devote
resources to potential acquisitions or in-licensing opportunities that are never completed, or we may fail to realize the anticipated benefits of
such efforts.  We may not be able to acquire the rights to additional product candidates on terms that we find acceptable, or at all.

In addition, future acquisitions may entail numerous operational and financial risks, including:

• exposure to unknown liabilities;

• disruption of our business and diversion of our management�s time and attention to develop acquired products or technologies;

• incurrence of substantial debt or dilutive issuances of securities to pay for acquisitions;

• higher than expected acquisition and integration costs;

• increased amortization expenses;

• difficulty and cost in combining the operations and personnel of any acquired businesses with our operations and personnel;

• impairment of relationships with key suppliers or customers of any acquired businesses due to changes in management and ownership; and

• inability to retain key employees of any acquired businesses.

Further, any product candidate that we acquire may require additional development efforts prior to commercial sale, including extensive clinical
testing and approval by the FDA and applicable foreign regulatory authorities.  All product candidates are prone to risks of failure typical of
product development, including the possibility that a product candidate will not be shown to be sufficiently safe and effective for approval by
regulatory authorities.
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Our business involves the use of hazardous materials and we and our third-party manufacturers must comply with environmental laws and
regulations, which can be expensive and restrict how we do business.
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Our and our third-party manufacturers� activities involve the controlled storage, use and disposal of hazardous materials, including the
components of our product candidates and other hazardous compounds.  We and our manufacturers are subject to federal, state and local laws
and regulations governing the use, manufacture, storage, handling and disposal of these hazardous materials.  In the event of an accident, state or
federal authorities may curtail the use of these materials and interrupt our business operations.  If we are subject to any liability as a result of our
or our third-party manufacturers� activities involving hazardous materials, our business and financial condition may be adversely affected.

We may be subject to stockholder litigation, which would harm our business and financial condition.
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We may have actions brought against us by stockholders relating to the Merger, past transactions, changes in our stock price or other matters. 
Any such actions could give rise to substantial damages, and thereby have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position,
liquidity, or results of operations.  Even if an action is not resolved against us, the uncertainty and expense associated with stockholder actions
could harm our business, financial condition and reputation.  Litigation can be costly, time-consuming and disruptive to business operations. 
The defense of lawsuits could also result in diversion of our management�s time and attention away from business operations, which could harm
our business.

Our results of operations and liquidity needs could be materially affected by market fluctuations and general economic conditions.
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Our results of operations could be materially affected by economic conditions generally, both in the U.S. and elsewhere around the world. 
Recently, concerns over inflation, energy costs, geopolitical issues, the availability and cost of credit, the U.S. mortgage market and a declining
residential real estate market in the U.S. have contributed to increased volatility and diminished expectations for the economy and the markets
going forward.  These factors, combined with volatile oil prices, declining business and consumer confidence and increased unemployment,
have precipitated an economic recession.  Domestic and international capital markets have also been experiencing heightened volatility and
turmoil.  These events and the continuing market upheavals may have an adverse effect on us.  In the event of a continuing market downturn, our
results of operations could be adversely affected.  Our future cost of equity or debt capital and access to the capital markets could be adversely
affected, and our stock price could decline.  There may be disruption in or delay in the performance of our third-party contractors and suppliers. 
If our contractors, suppliers and partners are unable to satisfy their contractual commitments, our business could suffer.  In addition, we maintain
significant amounts of cash and cash equivalents at one or more financial institutions that are in excess of federally insured limits.  Given the
current instability of financial institutions, we may experience losses on these deposits.

Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property
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It is difficult and costly to protect our intellectual property and our proprietary technologies, and we may not be able to ensure their
protection.
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Our commercial success will depend in part on obtaining and maintaining patent, trademark, trade secret, and other intellectual property
protection relating to our electroporation equipment and product candidates, as well as successfully defending these intellectual property rights
against third-party challenges.

The patent positions of pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies can be highly uncertain and involve complex legal and factual questions
for which important legal principles remain unresolved.  No consistent policy regarding the breadth of claims allowed in biotechnology patents
has emerged to date in the United States.  The biotechnology patent situation outside the United States can be even more uncertain depending on
the country.  Changes in either the patent laws or in interpretations of patent laws in the United States and other countries may diminish the
value of our intellectual property.  Accordingly, we cannot predict the breadth of claims that may be allowed or enforced in our licensed patents,
our patents or in third-party patents, nor can we predict the likelihood of our patents surviving a patent validity challenge.

The degree of future protection for our intellectual property rights is uncertain, because legal decision-making can be unpredictable, thereby
often times resulting in limited protection, which may not adequately protect our rights or permit us to gain or keep our competitive advantage. 
For example:

• we, or the parties from whom we have acquired or licensed patent rights, may not have been the first to file the underlying patent
applications or the first to make the inventions covered by such patents;

• the named inventors or co-inventors of patents or patent applications that we have licensed or acquired may be incorrect, which may give
rise to disputes or invalidate the patents;
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• others may independently develop similar or alternative technologies or duplicate any of our products or technologies that may not be
covered by our patents, or they may design around our patents;

• pending patent applications may not result in issued patents;

• the issued patents covering our products and technologies may not provide us with any competitive advantages;

• the issued patents may be challenged and invalidated, or rendered unenforceable;

• the issued patents may be subject to reexamination, which could result in a narrowing of the scope of claims or cancellation of claims found
unpatentable;

• we may not develop or acquire additional proprietary technologies that are patentable;

• our trademarks may be invalid or subject to a third party�s prior use; or

• our ability to enforce our patent rights will depend on our ability to detect infringement, and litigation to enforce patent rights may not be
pursued due to significant financial costs, diversion of resources, and unpredictability of a favorable result or ruling.

We depend, in part, on our licensors and collaborators to protect a portion of our intellectual property rights.  In such cases, our licensors and
collaborators may be primarily or wholly responsible for the maintenance of patents and prosecution of patent applications relating to important
areas of our business.  If any of these parties fail to adequately protect these products with issued patents, our business and prospects would be
harmed significantly.

We also may rely on trade secrets to protect our technology, especially where we do not believe patent protection is appropriate or obtainable. 
However, trade secrets are difficult to protect.  Although we use reasonable efforts to protect our trade secrets, our employees, consultants,
contractors, outside scientific collaborators and other advisors may unintentionally or willfully disclose our trade secrets to competitors. 
Enforcing a claim that a third-party entity illegally obtained and is using any of our trade secrets is expensive and time consuming, and the
outcome is unpredictable.  In addition, courts outside the United States are sometimes less willing to protect trade secrets.  Moreover, our
competitors may independently develop equivalent knowledge, methods and know-how.
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If we or our licensors fail to obtain or maintain patent protection or trade secret protection for our product candidates or our technologies, third
parties could use our proprietary information, which could impair our ability to compete in the market and adversely affect our ability to
generate revenues and attain profitability.

If we are sued for infringing intellectual property rights of third parties, it will be costly and time consuming, and an unfavorable outcome in
that litigation would have a material adverse effect on our business.
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Other companies may have or may acquire intellectual property rights that could be enforced against us.  If they do so, we may be required to
alter our technologies, pay licensing fees or cease activities.  If our products or technologies infringe the intellectual property rights of others,
they could bring legal action against us or our licensors or collaborators claiming damages and seeking to enjoin any activities that they believe
infringe their intellectual property rights.

Because patent applications can take many years to issue, there may be currently pending applications unknown to us or reissue applications that
may later result in issued patents upon which our products or technologies may infringe.  There could also be existing patents of which we are
unaware that our products or technologies may infringe.  In addition, if third parties file patent applications or obtain patents claiming products
or technologies also claimed by us in pending applications or issued patents, we may have to participate in interference proceedings in the U.S.
Patent and Trademark Office to determine priority of invention.  If third parties file oppositions in foreign countries, we may also have to
participate in opposition proceedings in foreign tribunals to defend the patentability of our filed foreign patent applications.

If a third party claims that we infringe its intellectual property rights, it could cause our business to suffer in a number of ways, including:
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• we may become involved in time-consuming and expensive litigation, even if the claim is without merit, the third party�s patent is ultimately
invalid or we are ultimately found to have not infringed;

• we may become liable for substantial damages for past infringement if a court decides that our technologies infringe upon a third party�s
patent;

• we may be ordered by a court to stop making, selling or licensing our products or technologies without a license from a patent holder, which
may not be available on commercially acceptable terms, if at all, or which may require us to pay substantial royalties or grant cross-licenses to
our patents; and

• we may have to redesign our products so that they do not infringe upon others� patent rights, which may not be possible or could require
substantial investment or time.

If any of these events occur, our business could suffer and the market price of our common stock may decline.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

The price of our common stock is expected to be volatile and an investment in our common stock could decline substantially in value.

In light of our small size and limited resources, as well as the uncertainties and risks that can affect our business and industry, our stock price is
expected to be highly volatile and can be subject to substantial drops, with or even in the absence of news affecting our business.  The following
factors, in addition to the other risk factors described in this quarterly report, and the potentially low volume of trades in our common stock, may
have a significant impact on the market price of our common stock, some of which are beyond our control:

• developments concerning any research and development, clinical trials, manufacturing, and marketing efforts or collaborations;

• fluctuating public or scientific interest in the potential for influenza pandemic or other applications for our vaccine or other product
candidates;

• our announcement of significant acquisitions, strategic collaborations, joint ventures or capital commitments;
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• fluctuations in our operating results

• announcements of technological innovations;

• new products or services that we or our competitors offer;

• the initiation, conduct and/or outcome of intellectual property and/or litigation matters;

• changes in financial or other estimates by securities analysts or other reviewers or evaluators of our business;

• conditions or trends in bio-pharmaceutical or other healthcare industries;

• regulatory developments in the United States and other countries;

• negative perception of gene based therapy;

• changes in the economic performance and/or market valuations of other biotechnology and medical device companies;

• additions or departures of key personnel;

• sales or other transactions involving our common stock;

• global unrest, terrorist activities, and economic and other external factors; and

• catastrophic weather and/or global disease pandemics.
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The stock market in general has recently experienced relatively large price and volume fluctuations.  In particular, the market prices of securities
of smaller biotechnology and medical device companies have experienced dramatic fluctuations that often have been unrelated or
disproportionate to the operating results of these companies.  Continued market fluctuations could result in extreme volatility in the price of the
common stock, which could cause a decline in the value of the common stock.  In addition, price volatility may increase if the trading volume of
our common stock remains limited or declines.

Anti-takeover provisions under our charter documents and Delaware law could delay or prevent a change of control which could limit the
market price of our common stock.
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Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation contains provisions that could delay or prevent a change of control of our company or
changes in our board of directors that our stockholders might consider favorable.  Some of these provisions include:

• the authority of our board of directors to issue shares of undesignated preferred stock and to determine the rights, preferences and privileges
of these shares, without stockholder approval;

• all stockholder actions must be effected at a duly called meeting of stockholders and not by written consent; and

• the elimination of cumulative voting.

In addition, we are governed by the provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporate Law, which may prohibit certain business
combinations with stockholders owning 15% or more of our outstanding voting stock.  These and other provisions in our amended and restated
certificate of incorporation, amended and restated bylaws and Delaware law could make it more difficult for stockholders or potential acquirers
to obtain control of our board of directors or initiate actions that are opposed by the then-current board of directors, including to delay or impede
a merger, tender offer or proxy contest involving our company.  Any delay or prevention of a change of control transaction or changes in our
board of directors could cause the market price of our common stock to decline.

We have never paid cash dividends on our common stock and we do not anticipate paying dividends in the foreseeable future.
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We have paid no cash dividends on our common stock to date, and we currently intend to retain our future earnings, if any, to fund the
development and growth of our business.  In addition, the terms of any future debt or credit facility may preclude or limit our ability to pay any
dividends.  As a result, capital appreciation, if any, of our common stock will be your sole source of potential gain for the foreseeable future.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

Not applicable.

Item 3. Default Upon Senior Securities

Not applicable.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

On August 25, 2009, we held our annual meeting of stockholders, at which our stockholders (i) elected five directors to hold office until the next
annual meeting of stockholders, (ii) ratified the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the
year ending December 31, 2009, and (iii) approved an amendment and restatement of the 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the �Plan�) to, among
other things, increase the number of shares available for issuance under the Plan by 2,000,000 shares, thereby increasing the number of shares
available for issuance under the Plan from 1,750,000 shares of common stock to 3,750,000 shares of common stock.  The vote on such matters
was as follows:
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1. Election of Directors

Director Votes For Votes Against Votes Abstained
Avtar Dhillon, M.D. 36,739,691 200,867 626,066
Joseph Kim, Ph.D 37,214,230 118,792 233,603
Simon X. Benito 37,372,452 131,053 63,120
Morton Collins, Ph.D 37,357,820 136,864 71,941
Tee Khiang Ng 37,106,404 125,771 334,450

2. Ratification of appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2009.

For Against Abstain Broker Non-Votes
37,223,515 254,987 88,120 �

3. Approval of amendment and restatement of the Plan to increase the number of shares of common stock reserved under the Plan by
2,000,000 shares, thereby increasing the number of shares available for issuance under the Plan from 1,750,000 shares of common stock to
3,750,000 shares of common stock.

For Against Abstain Broker Non-Votes
27,681,368 292,924 238,093 10,103,712

Item 5. Other Information

Not applicable.

Item 6. Exhibits

(a) Exhibits

Exhibit
Number Description of Document

4.1 Form of Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 29, 2009 and filed with
the SEC on July 30, 2009).
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10.1# Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated October 6, 2009 by and between Inovio Biomedical Corporation and
Dr. Avtar Dhillon (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 30, 2009 and
filed on October 6, 2009).

10.2# Amended and Restated 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan
10.3 Placement Agency Agreement dated July 29, 2009 by and between the Company and Rodman & Renshaw, LLP (incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 29, 2009 and filed with the SEC on July 30, 2009).
10.4 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated

July 29, 2009 and filed with the SEC on July 30, 2009).
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Item 601(b)(31) of Regulation S-K, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Item 601(b)(31) of Regulation S-K, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant

to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

* This exhibit shall not be deemed �filed� for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or otherwise subject to the
liabilities of that section, nor shall it be deemed incorporated by reference in any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, whether made before or after the date hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation language in any
filings.

# Indicates management contract or compensatory plan.
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INOVIO BIOMEDICAL CORPORATION

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Inovio Biomedical Corporation

Date: November 13, 2009 By: /s/ J. Joseph Kim
J. Joseph Kim
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: November 13, 2009 By: /s/ Peter Kies
Peter Kies
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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